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United States
Securities and Exchange Commission
Washington, D.C. 20549

Form 10-K

(Mark One)
T Annual Report Pursuant to Section 13 or 16fdhe Securities Exchange Act of 1934
For the fiscal year endeBbecember 31, 2011

£ Transition Report Pursuant to Section 13 or 15{dhe Securities Exchange Act of 1934
For the transition period from to

Commission File No1-3548
ALLETE, Inc.
(Exact name of registrant as specified in its @rart

Minnesota 41-0418150
(State or other jurisdiction of incorporation oganization) (I.R.S. Employer Identification No.

30 West Superior Street, Duluth, Minnesota 55802-23
(Address of principal executive offices, includinig code)
(218) 279-5000
(Registrant’s telephone number, including area fode
Securities Registered Pursuant to Section 12(b) tife Act:

Title of Each Class Name of Each Stock Exchamg®/hich Registered
Common Stock, without par value New York Stock Exchange

Securities Registered Pursuant to Section 12(qg) tife Act:
None

Indicate by check mark if the registrant is a welbwn seasoned issuer, as defined in Rule 40%edbéturities Act. Yes T Nd
Indicate by check mark if the registrant is notuiegd to file reports pursuant to Section 13 ort®ecl5(d) of the Act. Ye&l No T
Indicate by check mark whether the registrant @9 filed all reports required to be filed by Sewti® or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of4L88rin¢
the preceding 12 months (or for such shorter petiatithe registrant was required to file such reg)pand (2) has been subject to such filing neoents fc
the past90 days. YesT QDb
Indicate by check mark whether the registrant lisnitted electronically and posted on its corpokéleb site, if any, every Interactive Data File riegd to bt
submitted and posted pursuant to Rule 405 of R&gnl&-T during the preceding 12 months (or for such shgperiod that the registrant was require
submit and post such files). YesT [No
Indicate by check mark if disclosure of delinquilerrs pursuant to Iltem 405 of RegulatiorkSs not contained herein, and will not be contdirte the best
registrant’s knowledge, in definitive proxy or imfisation statements incorporated by reference inIRaf this Form 10-K or any amendment to thisrifol0-
K. T
Indicate by check mark whether the registrantlarge accelerated filer, an accelerated filer, a-acelerated filer or a smaller reporting comparsydafine:
in Rule 12b-2 of the Act).

Large Accelerated Filer T  Accelerated Fl&ar Non-Accelerated File] Smaller Reporting Compariy
Indicate by check mark whether the registrantsbell company (as defined in Rule 12b-2 of the Act)Yesd NoT
The aggregate market value of voting stock helddmyaffiliates on June 30, 2011, was $1,488,071,330.
As of February 1, 2012, there were 37,537,154 shairdLLETE Common Stock, without par value, outstig.
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Definitions

The following abbreviations or acronyms are usethin text. References in this report to “we,” “wsid “our” are to ALLETE, Inc. and i
subsidiaries, collectively.

Abbreviation or Acronym Term

AC Alternating Current

AFUDC Allowance for Funds Used During Constructiahe cost of both debt and equity funds usedhtanice utility
plant additions during construction periods

ALLETE ALLETE, Inc.

ALLETE Clean Energy
ALLETE Properties

ALLETE Clean Energy, Inc.
ALLETE Properties, LLC and its subsidiaries

ARS Auction Rate Securities

ATC American Transmission Company LLC
Basin Basin Electric Power Cooperative

Bison 1 Bison 1 Wind Project

Bison 2 Bison 2 Wind Project

Bison 3 Bison 3 Wind Project

BNI Coal BNI Coal, Ltd.

Boswell Boswell Energy Center

CAIR Clean Air Interstate Rule

CO: Carbon Dioxide

Company ALLETE, Inc. and its subsidiaries
CSAPR Cross-State Air Pollution Rule

DC Direct Current

EPA Environmental Protection Agency

ESOP Employee Stock Ownership Plan

FASB Financial Accounting Standards Board
FERC Federal Energy Regulatory Commission
Form 8-K ALLETE Current Report on Form 8-K
Form 10-K ALLETE Annual Report on Form 10-K
Form 10-Q ALLETE Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q
GAAP Accounting Principles Generally Acceptedhe tUnited States
GHG Greenhouse Gases

Hibbard Hibbard Renewable Energy Center
IBEW Local 31 International Brotherhood of Electrical Workers Bb81

IBEW Local 1593
Invest Direct

International Brotherhood of Elscal Workers Local 1593
ALLETE'’s Direct Stock Purchase and Dividend Reirnugent Plan

ltem__ ltem___ of this Form 10-K

kv Kilovolt(s)

Laskin Laskin Energy Center

LIBOR London Inter Bank Offered Rate

MACT Maximum Achievable Control Technology
Magnetation Magnetation, Inc.

Manitoba Hydro
MATS

MBtu

Medicare Part D

Manitoba Hydro-Electric Board
Mercury and Air Toxics Standards
Million British thermal units

Medicare Part D provision of the Patient Protectiod Affordable Care Act of 2010
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Definitions (continued)

Mesabi Nugget Mesabi Nugget Delaware, LLC

Minnesota Power An operating division of ALLETH¢I

Minnkota Power Minnkota Power Cooperative, Inc.

MISO Midwest Independent Transmission System QGperinc.
Moody'’s Moody’s Investors Service, Inc.

MPCA Minnesota Pollution Control Agency

MPUC Minnesota Public Utilities Commission

MW / MWh Megawatt(s) / Megawatt-hour(s)

NAAQS National Ambient Air Quality Standards

NDPSC North Dakota Public Service Commission

NOL Net Operating Loss

Non-residential Retail commercial, non-retail coeraial, office, industrial, warehouse, storage austitutional
NO . Nitrogen Dioxide

NO x Nitrogen Oxides

Note Note ___ to the consolidated financial statementhis Form 10-K
NPDES National Pollutant Discharge Elimination t8ys

NYSE New York Stock Exchange

Oliver Wind | Oliver Wind | Energy Center

Oliver Wind I Oliver Wind Il Energy Center

Palm Coast Park Palm Coast Park development priojédorida

Palm Coast Park District Palm Coast Park Community Development District
PolyMet PolyMet Mining Corporation

PPA Power Purchase Agreement

PPACA The Patient Protection and Affordable Cace & 2010
PSCW Public Service Commission of Wisconsin

Rainy River Energy Rainy River Energy Corporatidffisconsin

RSOP Retirement Savings and Stock Ownership Plan

SEC Securities and Exchange Commission

SO, Sulfur Dioxide

Square Butte Square Butte Electric Cooperative

Standard & Poor’s Standard & Poor’s Ratings Services

SWL&P Superior Water, Light and Power Company

Taconite Harbor Taconite Harbor Energy Center

Taconite Ridge Taconite Ridge Energy Center

Town Center Town Center at Palm Coast development projectonidi
Town Center District Town Center at Palm Coast @anmity Development District
U.S. United States of America

USS Corporation United States Steel Corporation

WDNR Wisconsin Department of Natural Resources

ALLETE 2011 Form 10-K
5




Forward-Looking Statements

Statements in this report that are not statemehtsistorical facts are considered “forward-lookinghd, accordingly, involve risks a
uncertainties that could cause actual resultsfterdinaterially from those discussed. Although starfivardiooking statements have been
in good faith and are based on reasonable assumptioere is no assurance that the expected reslliltse achieved. Any statements t
express, or involve discussions as to, future egpiens, risks, beliefs, plans, objectives, assionpf events, uncertainties, finan
performance, or growth strategies (often, but neags, through the use of words or phrases suclamticipates,” “believes,” “estimates,”
“expects,” “i plans,” “projects,” “likely,“will continue,” “could,” “may,” “potential,” “target,” “outlook” or words of similar meanin

intends,
are not statements of historical facts and maybedrd-looking.

In connection with the safe harbor provisions & Brivate Securities Litigation Reform Act of 199% are providing this cautionary staten
to identify important factors that could cause aatual results to differ materially from those icatied in forwardeoking statements made
or on behalf of ALLETE in this Form 1K; in presentations, on our website, in responsguestions or otherwise. These statement
qualified in their entirety by reference to, an@ accompanied by, the following important facténsaddition to any assumptions and o
factors referred to specifically in connection wihich forwardeoking statements that could cause our actualteetu differ materially fror
those indicated in the forward-looking statements:

* our ability to successfully implement our strategiiectives

* regulatory or legislative actions, including chasdge governmental policies of the United States@ess, state legislatures, the FERC
MPUC, the PSCW, the NDPSC, the EPA and varioug statal and county regulators, and city administsg about allowed rates
return, capital structure, financings, industry aate structure, acquisition and disposal of asaptsfacilities, real estate developm
operation and construction of plant facilities,aeery of purchased power, capital investments ghdreexpenses, present or prospe
wholesale and retail competition (including but tiotited to transmission costs), zoning and peingttof land held for resale a
environmental matters;

» our ability to manage expansion and integrate adtipms

» the potential impacts of climate change and futagilation to restrict the emissions of GHG on Regulated Operatior

» effects of restructuring initiatives in the electimdustry

» economic and geographic factors, including politavad economic risk

» changes in and compliance with laws and regulaj

» weather conditions, natural disasters and panddiséase:

» war, acts of terrorism and cyber atta

» wholesale power market conditio

* population growth rates and demographic patt

» effects of competition, including competition fatail and wholesale custome

» changes in the real estate mai

» pricing and transportation of commoditi

» changes in tax rates or policies or in rates détidn;

» project delays or changes in project cc

« availability and managementf construction materials and skilled constructimor for capital project

» changes in operating expenses and capital expees

» global and domestic economic conditions affectiagpuour customel

e our ability to access capital markets and banknfiirzy;

» changes in interest rates and the performancesdfrtncial market

* our ability to replace a mature workforce and retgialified, skilled and experienced personnel,

» the outcome of legal and administrative proceed{adeether civil or criminal) and settlemet

Additional disclosures regarding factors that cocdaise our results and performance to differ fresults or performance anticipated by
report are discussed in Item 1A under the headRigK' Factors” beginning on page 26 of this FormKLOAny forward{ooking statemel
speaks only as of the date on which such stateisen&de, and we undertake no obligation to updayef@rwardiooking statement to refle
events or circumstances after the date on whichstlaéement is made or to reflect the occurrenagnahticipated events. New factors em
from time to time, and it is not possible for maeagnt to predict all of these factors, nor carsseas the impact of each of these factors ¢
businesses of ALLETE or the extent to which anytdgcor combination of factors, may cause actuallts to differ materially from tho
contained in any forwartboking statement. Readers are urged to carefallieww and consider the various disclosures madeshy this Forr
10-K and in our other reports filed with the SE@tthttempt to advise interested parties of theofadhat may affect our business.
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Part |
Iltem 1. Busines:

Regulated Operationsincludes our regulated utilities, Minnesota Powed &WL&P, as well as our investment in ATC, a Wissia-base!
regulated utility that owns and maintains electrésysmission assets in parts of Wisconsin, Michiddimnesota and lllinois. Minnesota Po\
provides regulated utility electric service in fmastern Minnesota to approximately 144,000 retestomers. Minnesota Power's raffitiated
municipal customers consist of 16 municipalitiesMinnesota and 1 private utility in Wisconsin. SWR&a whollyewned subsidiary
ALLETE, is also a private utility in Wisconsin amdcustomer of Minnesota Power. SWL&P provides ratgual electric, natural gas and w
service in northwestern Wisconsin to approximate3y000 electric customers, 12,000 natural gas mest® and 10,00@ater customers. O
regulated utility operations include retail and Wesale activities under the jurisdiction of statel dederal regulatory authorities. (See Itel
Business — Regulated Operations — Regulatory Mgajter

Investments and Otheris comprised primarily of BNI Coal, our coal miningerations in North Dakota, ALLETE Properties, &lorida ree
estate investment, and ALLETE Clean Energy, forrmedune 2011, aimed at developing or acquiring tehgirojects that create ene
solutions via wind, solar, biomass, hydro, natgas/liquids, shale resources, clean coal and atean energy innovations. This segment
includes a small amount of non-rate base generatipproximately 5,500 acres of land availabledale in Minnesota, and earnings on |
and investments.

ALLETE is incorporated under the laws of Minnesd@aur corporate headquarters are in Duluth, Minreesstatistical information is presen

as of December 31, 2011unless otherwise indicated. All subsidiaries ¢fLETE are wholly owned unless otherwise specificafidicated
References in this report to “we,” “us” and “ourtao ALLETE and its subsidiaries, collectively.

Year Ended December 31 2011 201C 200¢

Consolidated Operating Revenue — Millions $928.: $907.( $759.:

Percentage of Consolidated Operating Revenue

Regulated Operations 92% 92% 90%
Investments and Other 8% 8% 10%
10C% 10C% 10C%

For a detailed discussion of results of operatiang trends, see Item 7. Managem&miscussion and Analysis of Financial Conditior
Results of Operations. For business segment infimmasee Note 1. Operations and Significant ActimgnPolicies and Note 2. Busini
Segments.

Regulated Operations

Electric Sales / Customers

Regulated Utility Electric Sales

Year Ended December 31 2011 % 201C % 200¢ %

Millions of Kilowatt-hours
Retail and Municipals

Residential 1,15¢ 9 1,15(C 9 1,164 10
Commercial 1,43: 11 1,43: 11 1,42( 12
Industrial 7,36¢ 56 6,80¢ 52 4,47¢ 37
Municipals (FERC rate regulated) 1,01z 7 1,00¢€ 7 997 8
Total Retail and Municipals 10,97( 83 10,39: 79 8,051 67
Other Power Suppliers 2,20t 17 2,74¢ 21 4,05¢€ 33
Total Regulated Utility Electric Sales 13,17¢ 100 13,13¢ 100 12,107 100

ALLETE 2011 Form 10-K
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Regulated Operations (Continued)

Seasonality

Due to the high concentration of industrial sald&mnesota Power is not subject to significant seatdluctuations. The operations of
industrial customers, which make up a large portibiour sales portfolio as shown in the table abare not typically subject to signific:

seasonal variations.

Industrial Customers . In 2011 , our industrial customers representegh&@ent of total regulated utility kilowatur sales. Our industr
customers are primarily in the taconite, paperp@uid wood products, and pipeline industries.

Industrial Customer Electric Sales

Year Ended December 31 2011 % 201C % 200¢ %

Millions of Kilowatt-hours

Taconite Producers 4,87¢ 66 4,32¢ 64 2,12¢ 47

Paper, Pulp and Wood Products 1,56( 21 1,57: 23 1,45¢ 33

Pipelines and Other Industrial 931 13 907 13 897 20
Total Industrial Customer Electric Sales 7,36¢ 100 6,80¢ 100 4,47¢ 100

Approximately 60 percent of the ore consumed bggrated steel facilities in the U.S. originatesfreix taconite customers of Minnes
Power, which represented 4,874 million kilowatt-f&gwor 66 percent , of our total industrial sale011 . Taconite, an irdpearing rock ¢
relatively low iron content, is abundantly avaikbh northern Minnesota and an important domestieree of raw material for the st
industry. Taconite processing plants use large tifiesof electric power to grind the irdsearing rock, and agglomerate and pelletize tha
particles into taconite pellets.

During 2011, the domestic steel industry operated at prodndéwels that enabled Minnesota taconite produtteoperate at near capacity
the entire year. According to the American Iron &tdel Institute (AISI), U.S. raw steel productioperated at approximately 75 percer
capacity in 2011 , up from 2010 levels of 70 petcand up significantly from 2009 levels of appmzitely 50 percent.

Annual taconite production in Minnesota increasedfthe approximately 36 million tons produced @1@ to approximately 40 million tons
2011 , near full production capacity. As a reskilgwatt-hour sales to our taconite customers ih2@ere greater than 2010 sales.

Projections from the AISI indicate that U.S. steedduction levels will operate at about 75 peradrdapacity in 2012. There has been a ge
historical correlation between U.S. steel productamd Minnesota taconite production. Based on tpegictions, 2012 taconite product
levels in Minnesota are expected to be similarGb12 We will market available power to Other PoBeppliers, when necessary, in an effo
mitigate the earnings impact of any lower industsees. Other Power Supply sales are dependemt tingoavailability of generation and
sold at market-based prices into the MISO marked daily basis or through bilateral agreementsagious durations.

In addition to serving the taconite industry, Misota Power also serves a number of customers ipaper, pulp and wood products indus
which represented 1,560 million kilowatt-hours2drpercent , of our total industrial sales in 20Ebur major paper mills, which represent
majority of this load, reported operating at, orweear, full capacity for the majority of 2011.

Large Power Customer ContractsMinnesota Power has 9 Large Power contracts withat§e Power Customers. All of these contractse
requirements of 10 MW or more of customer load. €hstomers consist of five taconite producing faed (two of which are owned by ¢
company and are served under a single contraat)iron nugget plant, and four paper and pulp mills.

ALLETE 2011 Form 10-K
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Regulated Operations (Continued)
Large Power Customer Contracts (Continued)

Large Power Customer contracts require MinnesoteePto have a certain amount of generating capasigjlable. In turn, each Large Po
Customer is required to pay a minimum monthly dednelmarge that covers the fixed costs associateu éving this capacity available
serve the customer, including a return on commaunitggMost contracts allow customers to establisé kevel of megawatts subject t
demand charge on a four-month basis and requiteatipertion of their megawatt needs be committechdake-orpay basis for at leas
portion of the term of the agreement. In additiothte demand charge, each Large Power Customéleid &n energy charge for each kilowatt-
hour used that recovers the variable costs incurregenerating electricity. Three of the Large PoWeistomers have interruptible sen
which provides a discounted demand rate in exchémgthe ability to interrupt the customers durisgstem emergencies. Minnesota P
also provides incremental production service fatomer demand levels above the contractual takeprevels. There is no demand chi
for this service and energy is priced at an incrgnadove Minnesota Power’s cost. Incremental prodoaervice is interruptible.

All contracts with Large Power Customers continastpthe contract termination date unless the reduiidvance notice of cancellation
been given. The advance notice of cancellationegaiiiom one to four years. Such contracts minintfizeimpact on earnings that otherv
would result from significant reductions in kilowdtour sales to such customers. Large Power Custoarersequired to take all of th
purchased electric service requirements from MioteePower for the duration of their contracts. Tiages and corresponding reve
associated with capacity and energy provided utigie contracts are subject to change throughathe segulatory process governing all ri
electric rates. (See Item 1. Business — Regulapetd@ons — Regulatory Matters — Electric Rates.)

Minnesota Power, as permitted by the MPUC, requtsetaconiteproducing Large Power Customers to pay weekly ectdéc usage based
monthly energy usage estimates. These customees/eeestimated bills based on Minnesota Power’sliptien of the customes’ energ
usage, forecasted energy prices, and fuel claysstatnt estimates. Minnesota Power’s five tacepitelucing Large Power Customers F
generally predictable energy usage on a week-tdelwasis, which makes the variance between the athusage and actual usage small.

Contract Status for Minnesota Power Large Power Cu®mers
As of February 1, 2012

Earliest
Customer Industry  Location Ownership Termination Date
ArcelorMittal USA — Minorca  Taconite  Virginia, MN ArcelorMittal USA Inc. January 31, 201
Mine (a)
Hibbing Taconite Co(a) Taconite Hibbing, MN 62.3% ArcelorMittal USA Inc. January 31, 201
23.0% Cliffs Natural Resources Inc.
14.7% USS Corporation
United Taconite LLQa) Taconite  Eveleth, MN Cliffs Natural Resources Inc. January 31, 201
USS Corporation Taconite Mt. Iron, MN and USS Corporation January 31, 201
(USS — Minnesota Orép,b) Keewatin, MN
Mesabi Nugget Iron NuggetHoyt Lakes, MN 80% Steel Dynamics, Inc. December 31, 201
20% Kobe Steel USA
Boise White Paper, LLC Paper International FaHB| Boise Paper Holdings, LLC January 31, 201
UPM, Blandin Paper Mil(a) Paper Grand Rapids, MN UPM-Kymmene Corporation January 31, 201
NewPage Corporation — Duluth Paper and Duluth, MN NewPage Corporation January 31, 201
Mill (a,c) Pulp
Sappi Cloquet LLQa) Paper and Cloquet, MN Sappi Limited January 31, 201

Pulp
(@) The contract will terminate four years from thealaf written notice from either Minnesota Powertloe customer. No notice of contract cancellatios
been given by either party. Thus, the earliest déteancellation is January 31, 2016.
(b) USS Corporation owns both the Minntac Plant in MaimIron, MN and the Keewatin Taconite Plant ineiatin, MN.
(c) NewPage filed for Chapter 11 bankruptcy protectam September 7, 2011. The Duluth mill operationgeheontinued without interruption and
continue to provide electric and steam servicéhts tustomer. (See Note 1. Operations and Signifidacounting Policies.)

ALLETE 2011 Form 10-K
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Regulated Operations (Continued)

Residential and Commercial Customersin 2011, our residential and commercial customers reptesgeP0 percent of total regulated uti
kilowatt-hour sales. Minnesota Power provides ratpd utility electric service in northeastern Misog to approximately 144,008sidentie
and commercial customers. SWL&P provides regulatedtric, natural gas and water service in north@rasWisconsin to approximats
15,000 electric customers, 12,000 natural gas mestoand 10,000 water customers.

Municipal Customers. In 2011 , our municipal customers represented s@ernent of total regulated utility kilowdtbur sales, whic
included 16 municipalities in Minnesota and 1 prévatility in Wisconsin. SWL&P, a whollpwned subsidiary of ALLETE, is also a priv
utility in Wisconsin and a customer of Minnesotaro. (See Item 1. Business — Regulated Operatidtagulatory Matters.)

Other Power Suppliers. The Company also enters into sffstem sales with Other Power Suppliers. Theses sake dependent upon
availability of generation and are sold at mafsased prices into the MISO market on a daily basithrough bilateral agreements of vari
durations.

Basin Power Sales Agreemeln October 2009, Minnesota Power entered into aeeagent to sell 100 MW of capacity and energy tsiBéo!
a tenyear period which began in May 2010. The capaditgrge is based on a fixed monthly schedule withigimum annual escalatir
provision. The energy charge is based on a fixedthip schedule and provides for annual escalatesed on our cost of fuel. The agreer
allows us to recover a pro rata share of increassts related to emissions that may occur duriedast five years of the contract.

Power Supply

In order to meet our customers’ electric requiretaewe utilize a mix of Company generation and pased power. The Compasyjeneratio
is primarily coalfired, but also includes approximately 102 MW ofihy generation from ten hydro stations in Minnesafgproximately 1C
MW of wind generation, and 73 MW of biomass codirgeneration. Purchased power is made up of teng-coal, wind and hydro powv
purchase agreements and market purchases. Theifajldable reflects the Company’s generating cdjiisi as of December 31, 20{With
the exception of certain Bison 1 units installedamuary 2012), and total electrical output for2Z0Minnesota Power had an annual net |
load of 1,599 MW on January 21, 2011.

ALLETE 2011 Form 10-K
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Regulated Operations (Continued)

Power Supply (Continued)
Year Ended
Unit Year Net December 31, 2011
Regulated Utility Power Supply No. Installed Capability Generation and Purchases
MW MWh %
Coal-Fired
Boswell Energy Center 1 1958 65
in Cohasset, MN 2 1960 67
3 1973 361
4 1980 46€
961 6,487,35 48.0
Laskin Energy Center 1 1953 49
in Hoyt Lakes, MN 2 1953 46
95 460,57: 3.4
Taconite Harbor Energy Center 1 1957 77
in Schroeder, MN 2 1957 75
3 1967 82
234 1,116,76 8.2
Total Coal 1,29( 8,064,69! 59.6
Biomass/Coal/Natural Gas
Hibbard Renewable Energy Center in Duluth, MN 4& 1949, 1951 51 36,01 0.3
Cloquet Energy Center in Cloquet, MN 5 2001 22 63,21¢ 0.4
Total Biomass/Coal/Natural Gas 73 99,23: 0.7
Hydro
Group consisting of ten stations in MN Various 10z 404,08( 3.0
Wind (a)
Taconite Ridge Energy Center in Mt. Iron, MN Varso 2008 4 65,05: 0.5
Bison 1 in Oliver and Morton Counties, ND Various 2010, 2012 11 128,16: 0.9
Total Wind 15 193,21! 14
Total Company Generation 1,48( 8,761,211 64.7
Long-Term Purchased Power
Lignite Coal - Square Butte near Center, ND 1,718,75. 12.7
Wind - Oliver County, ND 371,76( 2.8
Hydro - Manitoba Hydro in Winnipeg, MB, Canada 511,40: 3.8
Total Long-Term Purchased Power 2,601,911 19.3
Other Purchased Powigr) 2,160,98: 16.0
Total Purchased Power 4,762,89! 35.3

Total 1,48( 13,524,11 100.0

(a) Taconite Ridge Energy Center consists of 10 winbirte generator units with a total nameplate capaaf 25 MW. Bison 1 consists of 31 wind tur
generator units with a total nameplate capacity88f MW. The capacity reflected in the table is acawredited capacity of the facility, which is
amount of net generating capability associated wfité facility for which capacity credit was obtaihesing limited historical data. As more dat:
collected, actual accredited capacity may increase.

(b) Includes shorterm market purchases in the MISO market and fraheOPower Suppliers

ALLETE 2011 Form 10-K
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Regulated Operations (Continued)
Power Supply (Continued)

Fuel . Minnesota Power purchases low-sulfur, situminous coal from the Powder River Basin redmrated in Montana and Wyoming. C
consumption in 2011 for electric generation at Misota Power’s codired generating stations was approximately 4.9iomiltons. As ¢
December 31, 2011 , Minnesota Power had a coahtowe of 0.9 million tons. Minnesota Powsrtoal supply agreements have expire
dates in 2012 and 2013. In 201Rlinnesota Power expects to obtain coal undertieeal supply agreements and in the spot markemagiot
Power continues to explore future coal supply omioNe believe that adequate supplies of low-su#fubbituminous coal will continue to
available.

Minnesota Power also has transportation agreemienidace for the delivery of a significant portiasf its coal requirements. The
transportation agreements expire in various yeataden 2013 and 2015. The delivered costs of faeMinnesota Power's generation
recoverable from Minnesota Power's utility custositérough the fuel adjustment clause.

Coal Delivered to Minnesota Power

Year Ended December 31 2011 201( 200¢
Average Price per Ton $28.8t $25.4¢ $24.9¢
Average Price per MBtu $1.6( $1.42 $1.37

Long-Term Purchased Power. Minnesota Power has contracts to purchase cgpawit energy from various entities. The largesttreat is
with Square Butte. Under the agreement with SqBaitee, which expires at the end of 2026, Minnestataver is currently entitled to 50 perc
of the output of a 455-MW codired generating unit located near Center, Norttkdda. (See Note 11. Commitments, Guarantees
Contingencies.) BNI Coal supplies lignite coal fu&re Butte. This lignite supply is sufficient toopide fuel for the anticipated useful life
the generating unit. Square Butte’s cost of ligbitened in 2011 was approximately $1.10 per MBtu.

Oliver Wind | and Il.In 2006 and 2007 , Minnesota Power entered intolomgterm wind PPAs with an affiliate of NextEra Enerdiyg. tc
purchase the output from Oliver Wind | ( 50 MW) a@tiver Wind Il ( 48 MW), wind facilities located near Center, North D&k Eac
agreement is for 25 years and provides for thelase of all output from the facilities at fixedqas. There are niixed capacity charges, a
we only pay for energy as it is delivered to us.

Manitoba Hydro.We have a PPA with Manitoba Hydro that expires prin2015. Under this agreement, Minnesota Powegnuishasing &
MW of capacity and the energy associated with ¢agtcity. Both the capacity price and the energepare adjusted annually by the chang
a governmental inflationary index.

Minnesota Power has a separate PPA with Manitobdrdito purchase surplus energy from May 2011 thino@igril 2022. This energgnly
transaction primarily consists of surplus hydro rggeon Manitoba Hydro’s system that is deliveredMinnesota Power on a ndimm
basis. The pricing is based on forward market gritihder this agreement, Minnesota Power will pasehat least one million MWh of ene
over the contract term. On March 31, 2011, the MRipg@roved this PPA with Manitoba Hydro.

On May 19, 2011, Minnesota Power and Manitoba Hyslgmed a londerm PPA. The PPA calls for Manitoba Hydro to 280 MW o
capacity and energy to Minnesota Power for 15 ybaginning in 2020 and requires construction ofitmtthal transmission capacity betwe
Manitoba and the U.S. The capacity price is adfustenually until 2020 by a change in a governmeinfidtionary index. The energy price
based on a formula that includes an annual fixézkpromponent adjusted for a change in a goverrahérftationary index and a natural ¢
index, as well as market prices. On January 262 20 MPUC approved this PPA with Manitoba Hydro.

Transmission and Distribution
We have electric transmission and distributiondiiné 500 kV (8 miles), 345kV (29 miles), 250 kV Ehiles), 230 kV (632 mils), 161 k\

(43 miles), 138 kV (128 miles), 115 kV ( 1,221 ras)) and less t han 115 kV (6,216 m iles). We owh gperate 164ubstations with a tof
capacity o f 11,132 m egavoltamperes. Some ofransimission and distribution lines interconnechveaither utilities.
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Regulated Operations (Continued)
Investment in ATC

Rainy River Energy, our wholly owned subsidiary,mswapproximately 8 percent of ATC, a Wisconased utility that owns and mainte
electric transmission assets in parts of Wiscorigiichigan, Minnesota and lllinois. ATC rates areRfEapproved and are based on a
percent return on common equity dedicated to wutfllant. We account for our investment in ATC unthex equity method of accounting. As
December 31, 2011, our equity investment in ATG %88.9 million ($93.3 million at December 31, 2Q1(See Note 6. Investment in ATC.)

Properties

We own office and service buildings, an energy mntenter, repair shops, and storerooms in variocalities. All of our electric plants ¢
subject to mortgages, which collateralize the amding first mortgage bonds of Minnesota Power 8wl &P. Generally, we hold fee inter
in our real properties subject only to the lienthe# mortgages. Most of our electric lines are ledain land not owned in fee, but are covere
appropriate easement rights or by necessary pefroits governmental authorities. WPPI Energy ownsp2écent of Boswell Unit 4. WP
Energy has the right to use our transmission lamlifies to transport its share of Boswell generat (See Note 4. Jointlpwned Electri
Facilities.)

Regulatory Matters

We are subject to the jurisdiction of various regoity authorities. The MPUC has regulatory autlyasiter Minnesota Powes’service area
Minnesota, retail rates, retail services, capitalcture, issuance of securities and other matldre.FERC has jurisdiction over the licensin
hydroelectric projects, the establishment of rated charges for the sale of electricity for resaie transmission of electricity in interst
commerce, certain accounting and record-keepingtipes and ATC. The PSCW has regulatory authontgr SWL&P’s retail sales «
electricity, natural gas, water, issuances of géesyand other matters. The NDPSC has jurisdictieer site and route permitting of geners
and transmission facilities necessary for consimandn North Dakota.

Electric Rates.All rates and contract terms in our Regulated Oymma are subject to approval by appropriate reégayaauthorities. Minnesa
Power designs its electric service rates basedenaf service studies under which allocationsraagle to the various classes of custome
approved by the MPUC. Nearly all retail sales idelbilling adjustment clauses, which adjust elecigrvice rates for changes in the co
fuel and purchased energy, recovery of current deférred conservation improvement prograrexpenditures and recovery of cer
environmental, transmission and renewable experditu

Information published by the Edison Electric Ingti ( Typical Bills and Average Rates Report — Summef 20l Rankings — July 1, 2011
ranked Minnesota Power as having the seventh loawestge retail rates out of 169 utilities in th&lUMinnesota Power had the lowest rat
Minnesota and third lowest in the region consistifigpwa, Kansas, Minnesota, Missouri, North Dak@auth Dakota and Wisconsin.

Minnesota Public Utilities Commission.The MPUC has regulatory authority over Minnesotav@€ts service area in Minnesota, retail re
retail services, capital structure, issuance ofisées and other matters.

2010 Rate CaseOn November 2, 2010, Minnesota Power received #enmriorder from the MPUC approving a retail rateréase of $53
million, a 10.38 percent return on common equitd an54.29 percent equity ratio, subject to recanmsition. On May 24, 2011, the MP!I
issued an order authorizing Minnesota Power to émgint final rates of $53.5 million, effective June2011. The May 24, 2011 on
authorized Minnesota Power to collect a $3.2 milléfferential between interim rates and final sater the period from November 2, 2(
through May 31, 2011, all of which was recorde@@11.

Under the terms of a stipulation and settlemeneéagent approved by the MPUC as part of this rase,dslinnesota Power agreed to fc
collection of $20.5 million in revenue receivablet it was entitled to under a prior rider for Beswell Unit 3 environmental retrofit. T
agreement required the Company to capitalize, esopaate base, the $20.5 million to property,npland equipment representing AFUDC
conjunction with the settlement agreement, and upaeipt of the final rate order in February 20ttle Company reversed a $6.2 mill
deferred tax liability related to the revenue reable Minnesota Power agreed to forgo. The $20Ikomirevenue receivable was previot
included in regulatory assets on the Company'salimiaded balance sheet.
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Regulated Operations (Continued)
Regulatory Matters (Continued)

On February 22, 2011, Minnesota Power appealed1fPldC's interim rate decision in the Company's 2€t6 case with the Minnesota Cc
of Appeals. The Company appealed the MPUC's findihgxigent circumstances in the interim rate deaiwith the primary arguments tl
the MPUC exceeded its statutory authority, madelésision without the support of a body of recoviience and that the decision viole
public policy. The Company desires to resolve waethe MPUC's finding of exigent circumstances Veagul for application in future ra
cases. In December 2011, the Minnesota Court ofAlspconcluded that the MPUC did not err in findaggent circumstances and prop
exercised its discretion in setting interim ra@gs.January 4, 2012, the Company filed a petitionrdoiew at the Minnesota Supreme Court,
cannot predict the outcome at this time.

Pension.On December 22, 2011, the Company filed a petitidh the MPUC requesting a mechanism to recoverctist of capital associal
with the prepaid pension asset (or liability) cezbby the required contributions under the penplan in excess of (or less than) annual pet
expense. The Company further requested a mechdaisiefer pension expenses in excess of (or lesg thase currently being recoveres
base rates. If our petition is successful the impamld be deferred in a regulatory asset (or lighifor recovery (or refund) in the Company’
next general rate case.

ALLETE Clean EnergyOn August 26, 2011, the Company filed with the MPfd€approval of certain affiliated interest agresits betwee
ALLETE and ALLETE Clean Energy. These agreementateeto various relationships with ALLETE, includirthe accounting for certe
shared services, as well as the transfer of trassom and wind development rights in North DakaiaALLETE Clean Energy. The
transmission and wind development rights are séparad distinct from those needed by Minnesota Pdweneet Minnesota’ renewabl
energy standard requirements.

Bison 2 and Bison 3 Wind ProjecBison 2 and Bison 3 are both 105 MW wind projeot®brth Dakota which are expected to be comp
by the end of 2012. Site preparation is currentigarway for both projects and total project costsHison 2 and Bison 3 are estimated t
approximately $160 million each, of which $37.0lrit and $14.7 million respectively, was spent through December 31, 20h1Septemb
8, 2011, and November 2, 2011, the MPUC approvednbiota Powes petition seeking current cost recovery for inmesits an
expenditures related to Bison 2 and Bison 3, rdgpmdyg. On August 10, 2011, and October 12, 20h&, NDPSC issued a Certificate of .
Compatibility for Bison 2 and Bison 3, respectivelyhich authorized site construction to commence. &kticipate filing petitions with tl
MPUC in the first half of 2012 to establish custeorbiling rates for the approved cost recovery.

Hibbard Biomass Upgrade ProjecHibbard is a 51 MW biomass/coal/natural gas faciliacated in Duluth, Minnesota. The biom
optimization project, which was conditionally apped by the MPUC in September 2009, is designeg\verhge existing assets to incre
biomass renewable energy production at the faddityMinnesota Power customers.

We will seek current cost recovery authorizatiamirthe MPUC in 2012, along with any necessary pgingiapprovals required to comme
construction. The project has an expected cosppfeximately $22 million and an expected completiaite of 2013.

Integrated Resource Plaln October 2009, Minnesota Power filed with the MPlts 2010 Integrated Resource Plan, a compreheesitimat
of future capacity needs within Minnesota Powe€s/ge territory. Minnesota Power does not antitdghe need for new bakead generatic
within the Minnesota Power service territory throP25 and plans to meet estimated future custderaand while achieving:

* Increased system flexibility to adapt to volatilesimess cycles and varied future industrial loahados
¢ Reductions in the emission of GHGs (primarily ©0anc
« Compliance with mandated renewable energy stan:

To achieve these objectives over the coming yeeesare in the process of reshaping our generatiotigtio by adding approximately 3
MW of renewable energy to our generation mix anpl@ing options to incorporate peaking or internaeiresources. The first and sec
phases of the Bison 1 wind project in North Daketxe put into service in 2010 and January 2013ews/ely, increasing our renewa
generation by a total of 82 MW. The Bison 2 105 MW the Bison 3 105 MW wind projects, both expetteble in service in late 2012, w
approved by the MPUC in September and November ,2@spectively. These additional wind projects,nglavith the Hibbard Bioma
Upgrade Project, will continue our expansion irgnewable energy to meet our Integrated Resourcedgelals.
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Regulated Operations (Continued)
Regulatory Matters (Continued)

We project average annual lotgrm growth, excluding prospective additional |dean industrial and municipal customers, of appnaxiely
one percent in electric usage through 2025. Wealslb focus on conservation and demand side maregem meet the energy savings g
established in Minnesota legislation. The MPUC appd our Integrated Resource Plan in its final oidsued on May 6, 2011. A requi
baseload diversification study evaluating the intipefcadditional EPA regulations over the next twecddes was filed on February 6, 2(
Through this study Minnesota Power evaluated enwirental compliance scenarios for different poténméages of future EPA regulati
stringency to determine prominent power supplydseand impacts on customers. This study will adefdhe next steps in our on-going, long-
term resource planning process for consideratioouinnext Integrated Resource Plan submittal, whicist be filed with the MPUC no la
than July 1, 2013.

Transmission Investmentd/e have an approved cost recovery rider in placedaain transmission expenditures and the coatinise of ot
2009 billing factor was approved by the MPUC in MA.1. The billing factor allows us to charge aetail customers on a current basis fol
costs of constructing certain transmission fae#itplus a return on the capital invested. On JAn@@11, we filed an updated billing factor 1
includes additional transmission projects and egpsnwhich we expect to be approved in 2012.

Conservation Improvement Program (CIR)innesota requires electric utilities to spend aimum of 1.5 percent of gross operating reve
from service provided in the state on energy Cithe/ear. These investments are recovered frorih ceiomers through a combination of
conservation cost recovery charge (CCRC) includedetail base rates and a conservation programstd@nt (CPA), which is adjust
annually through the CIP consolidated filing. Th®WC allows utilities to accumulate, in a deferredaunt for future cost recovery, all (
expenditures, any financial incentive earned fost-effective program achievements, and a carryinggshan the deferred account bala
Minnesota’s Next Generation Energy Act of 2007 adtrced, in addition to minimum spending requireragan energgaving goal of 1.
percent of gross annual retail electric energyssaye2010. In June 2008, a biennial filing was sittea for 2009 and 2010, and in June 20!
triennial filing was submitted for 2011 through 30land each was subsequently approved by the Mitmd3epartment of Commer
Minnesota Power's CIP investment goal was $5.9anillor 2011 ($4.6 million for 2010; $4.6 milliomif 2009), with actual spending of $
million in 2011 ($5.6 million in 2010; $5.5 millioim 2009).

In 2007, the Minnesota Legislature enacted sewdrahges to state energy conservation goals andamnsg including establishing an anr
energysavings goal for each utility of 1.5 percent of aalnretail energy sales. In 2010, the MPUC adoptetew CIP financial incenti
mechanism beginning with the 2010 project year April 1, 2011, Minnesota Power submitted its 201@ €onsolidated filing that calculat
CIP financial incentives based upon the MPUC's pescedures. The total requested incentive was $libn. The requested CIP financ
incentive was approved by the MPUC in a hearingl leel December 22, 2011, and was recorded as revamli@s a regulatory asset;
approved financial incentive will be billed in 2012

Federal Energy Regulatory CommissionThe FERC has jurisdiction over the licensing of foglectric projects, the establishment of r:
and charges for transmission of electricity in istate commerce and electricity sold at wholesalelding the rates for our munici
customers), natural gas transportation, certaiwating and recor#teeping practices, certain activities of our wtilgubsidiaries, and t
operations of ATC. FERC jurisdiction also includesforcement of North American Electric Reliabili§orporation mandatory elect
reliability standards. Violations of FERC rules g@entially subject to enforcement action by tleRE including financial penalties up to
million per day per violation.
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Regulated Operations (Continued)
Regulatory Matters (Continued)

Minnesota Power’s noaffiliated municipal customers consist of 16 mupdities in Minnesota and 1 private utility in Wistsin. SWL&P,
wholly-owned subsidiary of ALLETE, is also a private t§ilin Wisconsin and a customer of Minnesota Power2008, Minnesota Pow
entered into formula-based rate contracts withehmstomers. In February 2011, Minnesota Powereshiato a new formuléased contra
with the City of Nashwauk, effective May 1, 2018rdugh April 30, 2022. In June 2011, Minnesota Poemtered into restated contra
effective July 1, 2011, through June 30, 2019, with remaining 15 Minnesota municipal customersl effective August 1, 2011, throu
June 30, 2019, with SWL&P. The rates included isthcontracts are calculated using a based formula methodology that is set each
using estimated costs and a rate of return thagisal to our authorized rate of return for Minnast#tail customers (10.38 percent).
formula-based rate methodology also provides foroathly and yearly truep calculation for actual costs incurred. Both tlesv and restat:
contract terms include a termination clause reqgir threerear notice to terminate. Under the City of Nashkvaantract, no terminatic
notice may be given prior to April 30, 2019. Undee restated contracts, no termination notices beagiven prior to June 30, 2016. A two-
year cancellation notice is required for the origgte noi-affiliated utility in Wisconsin, and on December, 2D11, this customer submitte
cancellation notice with termination effective oed@mber 31, 2013. We are currently in negotiatiorextend the contract with this customer.

Public Service Commission of WisconsinThe PSCW has regulatory authority over SWL&RFétail sales of electricity, natural gas, wi
issuances of securities, and other matters.

SWL&P’s 2011 retail rates are based on a 2010 PS€Mil rate order, effective January 1, 2011 , tdkdws for a 10.9 percemeturn ol
common equity. The new rates reflect a 2.4 peregatage increase in retail utility rates for SWL&Bstomers (a 12.8 perceintrease i
water rates, a 2.5 percent increase in naturatagas and a 0.7 perceintrease in electric rates). On an annualized ptsésrate increase w
generate approximately $2.0 million in additioratenue.

North Dakota Public Service CommissionThe NDPSC has jurisdiction over site and route jittirg of generation and transmission facili
necessary for construction in North Dakota.

On August 10, 2011, and October 12, 2011, the NDRS@=d a Certificate of Site Compatibility for Bis2 and Bison 3, respectively, wh
authorized site construction to commence.

Regional Organizations

Midwest Independent Transmission System Operator,ric. Minnesota Power and SWL&P are members of MISO,giorel transmissic
organization. While Minnesota Power and SWL&P mei@aivnership of their respective transmission assie¢sr transmission network is un
the regional operational control of MISO. Minnes®tawer and SWL&P take and provide transmissioniserunder the MISO open acc
transmission tariff. MISO continues its efforts $tandardize rates, terms, and conditions of trasson service over its broad regi
encompassing all or parts of 11 states and onedamprovince, and over 100,000 MW of generatinggcity.

Midwest Reliability Organization (MRO). Minnesota Poweis a member of the MRO, one of eight regional @tiin North Americ
responsible for: 1) developing and implementingceieity reliability standards; 2) enforcing comgaice with those standards; 3) provic
seasonal and longrm assessments of the bulk power system's ahilitpeet demand for electricity; and 4) providimgappeals and dispi
resolution process.

The MRO region spans the Canadian provinces of éelséwan and Manitoba, the states of North DaKdianesota, Nebraska, lowa, -
majority of South Dakota and Wisconsin, and a smaition of Montana. The region includes more th86 organizations that are involvec
the production and delivery of power to more th&nnzillion people. These organizations include mipakutilities, cooperatives, investor-
owned utilities, a federal power marketing ager@@gnadian Crown corporations, independent powerymerd and others who have interes
the reliability of the bulk power system.
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Regulated Operations (Continued)
Minnesota Legislation

Renewable Energlin February 2007, Minnesota enacted a law requi2bigercent of Minnesota Powettotal retail energy sales in Minnes
be from renewable energy sources by 2025. The Isavraquires Minnesota Power to meet interim niless of 12 percent by 2012, 17 per
by 2016 and 20 percent by 2020. Minnesota Powed&easloped a plan to meet the renewable goalsyddinmesota and has included this
in its 2010 Integrated Resource Plan. The MPUC@amat our Integrated Resource Plan in its final oiskued on May 6, 2011. The law allc
the MPUC to modify or delay meeting a milestonéniplementation will cause significant ratepayertamstechnical reliability issues. I
utility is not in compliance with a milestone, tMPUC may order the utility to construct facilitigsiurchase renewable energy or purc
renewable energy credits. We are currently on ttaekceed the 12 percent renewable energy reqeireby the end of 2012.

Minnesota Power has taken several steps to begiouérg its renewable energy strategy through lemewable projects that will ensure
meet the identified state mandate. We have two-temp PPAs with an affiliate of NextEra Energy, |nmr wind energy in North Dakc
(Oliver Wind | and Il). Other steps include TacenRidge, our wind facility located in northeastddimnesota, our Bison 1, 2 and 3 w
development projects and our Hibbard Biomass UpgRrdject.

Competition

Retail energy sales in Minnesota and Wisconsinrade to customers in assigned service territofiesa result, most retail electric custon
in Minnesota do not have the ability to choosertle&ctric supplier. Large energy users outsida ofunicipality of 2 MW and above may
allowed to choose a supplier upon MPUC approvahrdsota Power serves 10 Large Power facilities @@eMW, none of which ha
engaged in a competitive rate process. No othgelaommercial or small industrial customers havengted to seek a provider outsidt
Minnesota Powes service territory since 1994. Retail electric awadural gas customers in Wisconsin do not havealiiiy to choose the
energy supplier. In both states, however, eletyritiay compete with other forms of energy. Custameay also choose to generate their
electricity, or substitute other fuels for theirmudacturing processes.

For the year ended December 31, 2011 , seven pgestdme Companys energy sales were to municipal customers in Miatzeand a priva
utility in Wisconsin by contract under a formutased rate approved by FERC. These customers hawght to seek an energy supply fi
any wholesale electric service provider upon catteapiration. (See Item 1. Business — Regulatoajtéfs.)

The FERC has continued with its efforts to prormmetaore competitive wholesale market through operess transmission and other mean
a result, our sales to Other Power Suppliers anghorchases to supply our retail and wholesale &yvadn the competitive market.

Franchises

Minnesota Power holds franchises to construct aathtain an electric distribution and transmissigstem in 94 cities and towns loca
within its electric service territory. SWL&P holdg similar franchises for electric, natural gas/anwvater systems in 1 city and 16 villages
towns within its service territory. The remainingies, villages and towns served by us do not megai franchise to operate within tt
boundaries. Our exclusive service territories atatdished by state regulatory agencies.

Investments and Other

Investments and Other is comprised primarily of BMlal, our coal mining operations in North Dakad| ETE Properties, our Florida re
estate investment, and ALLETE Clean Energy, forrmedune 2011, aimed at developing or acquiring tehgirojects that create ene
solutions via wind, solar, biomass, hydro, natgad/liquids, shale resources, clean coal and athan energy innovations. This segment
includes a small amount of non-rate base generatigproximately 5,500 acres of land availabledale in Minnesota, and earnings on 1
and investments.
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Investments and Other (Continued)

BNI Coal

BNI Coal is a loweost supplier of lignite in North Dakota, produciabout 4 million tons annually. Two electric gerirg cooperative
Minnkota Power and Square Butte, presently consuintgally all of BNI Coal’s production of lignite nder costplus, fixed fee coal supg
agreements extending through 2026. (See Item 1lin8ss — Power Supply — Lorigerm Purchased Power and Note 11. Commitrr
Guarantees and Contingencies.) The mining prodsssiols and reclaims between 200 and 250 acreggaer Laws require that the reclair
land be at least as productive as it was prior ifting. As of December 31, 2011 BNI had a $10.3 iomllasset reclamation obligation ($
million at December 31, 2010) included in other twomrent liabilities on our consolidated balanceeth These costs are included in the cost
plus contract, for which an asset reclamation cestivable was included in other noarrent assets on our consolidated balance shie
asset reclamation obligation is guaranteed by guehds and a letter of credit. (See Note 11. Camenmts, Guarantees and Contingenc
BNI Coal has lignite reserves of an estimated 680om tons.

ALLETE Properties

ALLETE Properties represents our Florida real esiiestment. Our current strategy for the assetis complete and maintain key entitlem
and infrastructure improvements without requiringngficant additional investment and sell the politi over time or in bulk transactiol
ALLETE intends to sell its Florida land assets wirgaportunities arise and reinvest the proceedssigrowth initiatives. ALLETE does r
intend to acquire additional Florida real estate.

Our two major development projects are Town Ceater Palm Coast Park. Another major project, Orm@rabsings is currently in the des
and permitting stage. The City of Ormond Beachyifiy approved a Development Agreement for Ormonos§ings which will facilitat
development of the project as currently plannegaBsely, the Lake Swamp wetland mitigation bank warmitted on land that was previot
part of Ormond Crossings. Market conditions wiltetenine when our projects will be built out. Seenit 7. Managemerdt’ Discussion ar
Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Ggiems — Outlook for more information on ALLETE Peoties’ land holdings.

Seller Financing. ALLETE Properties occasionally provides seller fiogg to certain qualified buyers. At December 2211, outstandin
finance receivables were $2.0 million, with mafestup to 3 years. These finance receivables adotagest at markdtased rates and |
collateralized by the financed properties.

Regulation. A substantial portion of our development propertieBlorida are subject to federal, state and loegulations, and restrictions t
may impose significant costs or limitations on ability to develop the properties. Much of our pedy is vacant land and some is locate
areas where development may affect the naturaltdtabof various protected wildlife species or im@tve environmental areas suct
wetlands.

ALLETE Clean Energy

In June 2011, we established ALLETE Clean Energyhally owned subsidiary of ALLETE. ALLETE Clean Ergy operates independet
of Minnesota Power to develop or acquire capitajguots aimed at creating energy solutions via waodar, biomass, hydro, natural gas/ligt
shale resources, clean coal and other clean enengyations. ALLETE Clean Energy intends to marketelectric utilities, cooperative
municipalities, independent power marketers angkl@nd-users across North America through long-fiPAs.

On August 26, 2011, the Company filed with the MPfa€approval of certain affiliated interest agresits between ALLETE and ALLET
Clean Energy. These agreements relate to varidaoreships with ALLETE, including the accountingrfcertain shared services, as we
the transfer of transmission and wind developmigits in North Dakota to ALLETE Clean Energy. Théssssmission and wind developm
rights are separate and distinct from those nebgedinnesota Power to meet Minnesota’'s renewabéegynstandard requirements.
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Investments and Other (Continued)
Non-Rate Base Generation
As of December 31, 2011 , non-rate base generationsists of 31 MW of generation at Rapids Energgt@e In 2011, we sold 0.1 millio

MWh of non-rate base generation (0.1 million in @Gdnd 0.2 million in 2009. In November 2009, Cloquet Energy Center wassfeane(
from non-rate base generation to regulated operstio

Net
Year Year Capability
Non-Rate Base Power Supply Unit No. Installed Acquired (MW)
Rapids Energy Centéa)
in Grand Rapids, MN
Steam — Biomas®) 6&7 1969, 1980 2000 30
Hydro — Conventional Run-of-River 4&5 1917, 894 2000 1

(@) The net generation is primarily dedicated to thedseof one custome
(b) Rapids Energy Center is supplemented by «

Other

Minnesota Land. We have approximately 5,500 acres of land avaitédniesale in Minnesota. We acquired the land in 2001nmie purchase
the Taconite Harbor generating facilities.

Environmental Matters

Our businesses are subject to regulation of enmismal matters by various federal, state and lacaghorities. Currently, a number
regulatory changes to the Clean Air Act, the Clgdater Act and various waste management requirengstainder consideration by b
Congress and the EPA. Minnesota Power's fossil famlities will likely be subject to regulation dar these proposals. Our intention i
reduce our exposure to these requirements by reghapr generation portfolio over time to reduce mliance on coal.

We consider our businesses to be in substantiapliante with currently applicable environmentalutegions and believe all necessary per
to conduct such operations have been obtained t®tigure restrictive environmental requirementstigh legislation and/or rulemaking,
anticipate that potential expenditures for envirental matters will be material and will requirersfecant capital investments.

We review environmental matters on a quarterly 9a&ccruals for environmental matters are recondbdn it is probable that a liability F
been incurred and the amount of the liability carréasonably estimated, based on current law astngxtechnologies. Accruals are adjut
as assessment and remediation efforts progress additional technical or legal information becoenailable. Accruals for environmer
liabilities are included in the consolidated baksbeet at undiscounted amounts and exclude cfamnscoveries from insurance or other tl
parties. Costs related to environmental contananatieatment and cleanup are charged to expensssurdcoverable in rates from customers.

Air. The electric utility industry is heavily regulatédth at the federal and state level to addressrmissions. Minnesota Power's gener:
facilities mainly burn low-sulfur western sddituminous coal. Square Butte, located in North @ak burns lignite coal. All of Minnesc
Power's coal-fired generating facilities are egagbmvith pollution control equipment such as scrubbkbag houses and low NQechnologies
At this time, under currently applicable environt@nregulations, these facilities are substantiampliant with applicable emissi
requirements.

New Source Review (NS. In August 2008, Minnesota Power received a Natic¥iolation (NOV) from the EPA asserting violatie of the
NSR requirements of the Clean Air Act at Boswellitdri, 2, 3 and 4 and Laskin Unit 2. The NOV ass#rat seven projects undertake
these coafired plants between the years 1981 and 2000 sHuale been reviewed under the NSR requirementsretdhe Boswell Unit
Title V permit was violated. In April 2011, MinnesoPower received a NOV alleging that two projecstdertaken at Rapids Energy Cente
2004 and 2005 should have been reviewed under 8R Mquirements and that the Rapids Energy CenfigksV permit was violate:
Minnesota Power believes the projects specifietthénNOVs were in full compliance with the Clean Aict, NSR requirements and applice
permits. We are engaged in discussions with the Egarding resolution of these matters, but weuaiable to predict the outcome of th
discussions.
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Environmental Matters (Continued)
Air (Continued)

The resolution could result in civil penalties ghd installation of control technology, some of ethis already planned or completed for o
regulatory requirements. Any costs of installindlyt@n control technology would likely be eligibker recovery in rates over time subjec
MPUC and FERC approval in a rate proceeding.

Cross-State Air Pollution Rule (CSAPRYn July 6, 2011, the EPA issued the CSAPR, whieht into effect on October 7, 2011. The final
replaced the EPA's 2005 Clean Air Interstate RGI&IR). However, on December 30, 2011, the Uniteatedt Court of Appeals for the Dist
of Columbia Circuit issued a ruling staying implertegion of the CSAPR, pending judicial review, ardered that the CAIR remain in pl:
while the CSAPR is stayed.

If the CSAPR is reinstated after judicial revietwvill require states in the CSAPR region to sigrhtly improve air quality by reducing pov
plant emissions that contribute to ozone and/a fiarticle pollution in other states. These redmtet do not directly require the installatior
controls. Instead, they require facilities to haudficient emission allowances to cover their einiss on an annual basis. These allowa
would be allocated to facilities annually by theA=gnd will also be able to be bought and sold.

The CAIR regulations similarly require certain s&ato improve air quality by reducing power plamtigsions that contribute to ozone an
fine particle pollution in other states. Minnesptaticipation in the CAIR was stayed by EPA adntiaisve action while the EPA complete
review of air quality modeling issues in conjunatiwith the development of a final replacement riteits final determination, the EPA lisi
Minnesota as a CSAPR-affected state based on newo@4fine particulate NAAQS analysis. While the ®Atemains in effect, Minnesc
participation in the CAIR will continue to be stalyelt is uncertain if the CSAPRelated emission restrictions will become effectfoe
Minnesota utilities.

Since 2006, we have significantly reduced emissatnsur Laskin, Taconite Harbor and Boswell genegatinits. Our analysis, based on
expected generation rates, indicates that thesmtremission reductions would satisfy Minnesota &&/SO, and NOx emission compliant
obligations with respect to the ERMlocated CSAPR allowances for 2012. We will com¢irio evaluate our compliance strategy under C¢
and if any capital investments or allowance purebeasre required, we would likely seek recoveryhofe costs. We are unable to predict
additional CSAPR compliance costs we might incuhittime if CSAPR is reinstated.

Minnesota Regional Haz. The federal regional haze rule requires statesutomit state implementation plans (SIPs) to thé B addres
regional haze visibility impairment in 156 fedeyafirotected parks and wilderness areas. Under thienadhaze rule, certain large statior
sources, put in place between 1962 and 1977, witisstons contributing to visibility impairment, arequired to install emission contrc
known as Best Available Retrofit Technology (BARWe have two steam units, Boswell Unit 3 and TateoHiarbor Unit 3, which are subj
to BART requirements.

Pursuant to the regional haze rule, Minnesota wesaired to develop its SIP by December 2007. Asahanism for demonstrating progt
towards meeting the lontgrm regional haze goal, in April 2007, the MPCAvaiced a draft conceptual SIP which relied on tinglémentatio
of CAIR. However, a formal SIP was not filed attthiane due to the United States Court of Appealstfi@ District of Columbia Circuit
remand of CAIR. Subsequently, the MPCA requestatl tbmpanies with BAREligible units complete and submit a BART emissioostro
retrofit study, which was completed for Taconiterbta Unit 3 in November 2008. The retrofit work coleted in 2009 at Boswell Unit 3 me
the BART requirements for that unit. In Decembe®@20the MPCA approved the Minnesota SIP for sulainiti the EPA for its review a
approval. The Minnesota SIP incorporates infornrmafiom the BART emissions control retrofit studibat were completed as requested b
MPCA.

On December 30, 2011, the EPA published in the fa¢dRegister a proposal to revise the regional malee This proposal would approve
trading program in the CSAPR as an alternativeeterminining BART. If adopted, states in the CSAP&ar could substitute participation
CSAPR for source-specific BART requirements for Sfhd NOx emissions from power plants. On January 2, 2012 MPCA submitted 1
the EPA a supplemental Minnesota regional hazesgifihg that it wishes to rely on the CSAPR tos$atBART requirements for S@and NC
«for electric generating units.

On January 25, 2012, the EPA published in the RddRegister a proposal to approve the Minnesota iSthuding the supplemental Minnes
SIP. If the Minnesota SIP, the supplemental Mintee€1P, and the EPA's regional haze rule revisaesfinalized as currently proposed,
the CSAPR rule is reinstated, then Minnesota Palwes not foresee a need to make significant additiexpenditures at Taconite Harbor |
3 to comply with the regional haze rule.
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Environmental Matters (Continued)
Air (Continued)

If controls are ultimately required, Minnesota Powall have up to five years from the final promatgn deadline to bring Taconite Har
Unit 3 into compliance with the regional haze rréguirements. It is uncertain what controls woulkimately be required at Taconite Har
Unit 3 under this scenario, in connection with tegional haze rule.

Mercury and Air Toxics Standards (MATS) Rule (fatynknown as the Electric Generating Unit Maximuroh#evable Control Technolo
(MACT) Rule)Under Section 112 of the Clean Air Act, the EPAdguired to set emission standards for hazardoysoflutants (HAPS) fc
certain source categories. The EPA released a pedp®lATS rule on March 16, 2011, addressing sucissaoms from coafired utility units
greater than 25 MW. The final rule was issued omddgber 21, 2011. There are currently 188 listed siAafich the EPA is required
evaluate for establishment of MACT standards. la final MATS rule, the EPA established categoriédHAPs, including mercury, tra
metals other than mercury, acid gases, dioxin/&jrand organics other than dioxin/furans. The ERA astablished emission limits for the 1
three categories of HAPs, and work practice statalfor the remaining categories. Affected sourcesld have to be in compliance with
rule three years after it is published in the FalBegister. States have the authority to grantcesua ongrear extension. Compliance at
Boswell Unit 4 to address the final MATS rule igpekted to result in capital expenditures betwedd03$8illion to $400 million over the ne
five years. Some additional controls for complyimigh the rule at our remaining cofited generating units may be required, the coktghich
cannot be estimated at this time.

EPA National Emission Standards for Hazardous AdiliRants for Major Sources: Industrial, Commerciahd Institutional Boilers ar
Process Heater. In March 2011, a final rule was published in Bezleral Register for industrial boiler maximum asfaible control technolor
(Industrial Boiler MACT). The rule was stayed bytBPA on May 16, 2011, to allow the EPA time tosidar additional comments receiv
The EPA reproposed the rule in December 2011. A final rulexpected in April 2012. On January 9, 2012, thdddinStates District Court f
the District of Columbia ruled that the EPA staytloé Industrial Boiler MACT was unlawful, effectilyereinstating the March 2011 rule ¢
associated compliance deadlines. Major sourcesxected to have three years to achieve compliaitbethe final rule. It is not known y
whether the final rule from the December 2011 psahoexpected in April 2012, will establish new gdimnce deadlines. This rule may re
in additional control measures being required giitRaEnergy Center and Hibbard. Costs for complyitith the final rule cannot be estima
at this time.

Minnesota Mercury Emission Reduction ;.. Under Minnesota law, a mercury emissions redacgitan for Boswell Unit 4 is required to
submitted by July 1, 2015, with implementation ateft than December 31, 2018. The statute also foallsn evaluation of a mercury con
alternative which provides for environmental andlmuhealth benefits without imposing excessivetsasn the utility's customers. Ut
Minnesota Power files its mercury emission reductidan for Boswell Unit 4, it must file an annuaport updating the MPUC and ot
stakeholders on the status of emission reductiannihg for Boswell Unit 4. The first update wagdilwith the MPUC on June 30, 2011.

Mercury emission limits have also been includedthe recently finalized MATS rule. We anticipate ttithe emission reduction pl
implemented to comply with the MATS rule will sdfisthe mercury emission limits under Minnesota la®osts for the Boswell Unit
emission reduction plan are included in the esthagpital expenditures required for compliancéwhe MATS rule discussed above.

Proposed and Finalized National Ambient Air Quality Standards (NAAQS). The EPA is required to review the NAAQS every figars. If th
EPA determines that a state's air quality is natdmpliance with a NAAQS, the state is requirecdopt plans describing how it will redt
emissions to attain the NAAQS. These state platendhclude more stringent air emission limitatiars sources of air pollutants than
NAAQS. Four NAAQS have either recently been revisedre currently proposed for revision, as desctibelow.

Ozone NAAQSThe EPA has proposed to more stringently controisgions that result in ground level ozone. In Jane®10, the EP.
proposed to revise the 2008 eight-hour ozone stdrated to adopt a secondary standard for the gioteof sensitive vegetation from ozone-
related damage. The EPA was scheduled to decide thygo2008 eighhour ozone standard in July 2011, but has annouthedt is deferrin
revision of this standard until 2013.
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Environmental Matters (Continued)
NAAQS (Continued)

Particulate Matter NAAQSThe EPA finalized the NAAQS Particulate Matter stards in September 2006. Since then, the EPA ésttedl
more stringent 24-hour average fine particulatetengdPM.s) standard and kept the annual average fine patematter standard and the 24-
hour coarse particulate matter standard unchangesl United States Court of Appeals for the DistatColumbia Circuit has remanded

PM s standard to the EPA, requiring consideration ofdowannual average standard values. The EPA expegisopose the new Pk
standards in June 2012 with a goal to finalizerthe by June 2013. State attainment status detatimmwill occur after the rule is finalized

is not known when affected sources would have ke tadditional control measures if modeling demaiss norcompliance at their prope
boundary. The EPA has indicated that ambient atitgumonitoring for 2008 through 2010 will be usasla basis for states to characterize
attainment status.

SO.and NO.NAAQS.During 2010, the EPA finalized new one-hour NAAQB $0O,and NO,. Monitoring data indicates that Minnesota
likely be in compliance with these new standardsyéver, the one-hour SONAAQS also requires the EPA to evaluate modeling ds
determine attainment. The MPCA intends to compieiteinitial modeling effort by the end of the tirguarter of 2012, using facility data fr
sources that emit more than 100 tons per year of SRinnesota Powe provided such data for all of our steam genegafacilities. It i
unclear what the outcome of this evaluation will be

These NAAQS modeling efforts could result in moteéngent emission limits on our cofited generating facilities, and possibly additit
control measures on some of our units. The MPCA ihtsmed affected sources that compliance strategequired as a result of th
modeling results must be agreed to with the MPCA-égruary 2013. One-hour SBIAAQS attainment is required by 2017.

We are unable to predict the compliance costs vghnincur; however, the costs could be material. Wéelld seek recovery of any additio
costs through cost recovery riders or in a genatel case.

Climate Change. The scientific community generally accepts thatsmioins of GHGs are linked to global climate chari@énate chanc
creates physical and financial risk. These physiisiis could include, but are not limited to: inesed or decreased precipitation and v
levels in lakes and rivers; increased temperatured;the intensity and frequency of extreme weagivents. These all have the potenti
affect the Company's business and operations. MotaePower is addressing climate change by takiegfdllowing steps that also ens
reliable and environmentally compliant generatiesources to meet our customers' requirements:

e Expand our renewable energy sup

« Improve the efficiency of our coblsed generation facilities, as well as other meedficiencies

« Provide energy conservation initiatives for ourtongers and engage in other demand side effort:

* Support research of technologies to reduce carboss@ns from generation facilities and supporboarsequestration effor

EPA Regulation of GHG EmissionIn May 2010, the EPA issued the final PreventidnSanificant Deterioration (PSD) and Title
Greenhouse Gas Tailoring Rule (Tailoring Rule). Tadoring Rule establishes permitting thresholdguired to address GHG emissions
new facilities, at existing facilities that underg@mjor modifications and at other facilities chaesized as major sources under the Cleal
Act's Title V program.

For our existing facilities, the rule does not reguamending our existing Title V Operating Permits include GHG requiremen
Implementation of the requirement to add GHG priovis to permits will be completed at the state léwévlinnesota by the MPCA when t
Title V permits are renewed. However, installatmihnew units or modification of existing units ré&wg in a significant increase in Gt
emissions will require obtaining PSD permits andeading our operating permits to demonstrate thait Bevailable Control Technolo
(BACT) is being used at the facility to control GHEEnissions. The EPA has defined significant emissincrease for existing sources
GHG increase of 75,000 tons or more per year af ®HG on a CQequivalent basis.
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Environmental Matters (Continued)
Climate Change (Continued)

In late 2010, the EPA issued guidance to permittinthorities and affected sources to facilitateiporation of the Tailoring Rule permitti
requirements into the Title V and PSD permittinggrams. The guidance stated that the project-specg-down BACT determination proce
used for other pollutants will also be used to aeiee BACT for GHG emissions. Through secspecific white papers, the EPA also provi
examples and technical summaries of GHG emissiatra@dechnologies and techniques the EPA consiaeafiable or likely to be available
sources. It is possible these control technolog@dd be determined to be BACT on a projectgogject basis. In the near term, one of
appears to be energy efficiency maximization.

Legal challenges to the EPA's regulation of GHGssions, including the Tailoring Rule, have beeadfiby others and are awaiting judi
determination. Comments to the permitting guidaneee also submitted by Minnesota Power and othedsnaay be addressed by the EP.
the form of revised guidance documents.

We are unable to predict the compliance costs vghnincur; however, the costs could be material. Wéelld seek recovery of any additio
costs through cost recovery riders or in a genatel case.

Water. The Clean Water Act requires NPDES permits be obthifrom the EPA (or, when delegated, from indigidstate pollution contr
agencies) for any wastewater discharged into nhlégaaters. We have obtained all necessary NPDESitse including NPDES storm wa
permits for applicable facilities, to conduct oyresations. We are in substantial compliance wids¢hpermits.

Clean Water Act - Aquatic Organisn@n April 20, 2011, the EPA published in the Fed&agister proposed regulations under Section 3
of the Clean Water Act that set standards applicablcooling water intake structures for the pridtecof aquatic organisms. The propc
regulations would require existing large power pdaend manufacturing facilities that withdraw gegahan 25 percent of water from adjai
water bodies for cooling purposes and have a desigke flow of greater than 2 million gallons pagy to limit the number of aqua
organisms that are killed when they are pinnedregjahe facility's intake structure or that arevetrainto the facility's cooling system. T
Section 316(b) standards would be implemented girddPDES permits issued to the covered facilitidse Section 316(b) proposed 1
comment period ended in August 2011. The EPA isgatdd to finalize the rule by July 27, 2012. Mieo& Power is in the process
evaluating the potential impacts the proposed mi#g have on its facilities. We are unable to prethe compliance cost we might inc
however, the costs could be material. We would seetvery of any additional costs through cost vecpriders or in a general rate case.

EPA Steam Electric Power Generating Effluent Guid. In late 2009, the EPA announced that it will béie®ing and reissuing the fede
effluent guidelines for steam electric stationse3éare the underlying federal water discharges ithigt apply to all steam electric stations.
EPA has indicated that the new rule promulgatireg¢hguidelines will be proposed in 2012 and firalim 2014. As part of the review ph
for this new rule, the EPA issued an Informationl&@xdion Request (ICR) in June 2010, to most théredectric generating stations in

country, including all five of Minnesota Power'sngeating stations. The ICR was completed and stednto the EPA in September 2010
Boswell, Laskin, Taconite Harbor, Hibbard, and Risgtnergy Center. The ICR was designed to gatitensixe information on the nature i
extent of all water discharge and related wastawsadling at power plants. The information gathetteough the ICR will form a basis
development of the eventual new rule, which coaldude more restrictive requirements on wastewditaharge, flue gas desulfurization,

wet ash handling operations. We are unable to gréfu2 costs we might incur to comply with potehfiidure water discharge regulations at
time.

Solid and Hazardous Waste.The Resource Conservation and Recovery Act of I@gblates the management and disposal of soli
hazardous wastes. We are required to notify the &H#fazardous waste activity and, consequentiytimely submit the necessary reports tc
EPA.

Coal Ash Management FacilitiesMinnesota Power generates coal ash at all fiveso€aalfired electric generating facilities. Two facilig
store ash in onsite impoundments (ash ponds) wigineered liners and containment dikes. Anothéeilifiastores dry ash in a landfill with
engineered liner and leachate collection systeno fawilities generate a combined wood and coaltlaghis either land applied as an appre
beneficial use or trucked to state permitted ldisdfin June 2010, the EPA proposed regulationsé@ combustion residuals generated b
electric utility sector. The proposal sought comtsem three general regulatory schemes for coal@smments on the proposed rule were
in November 2010. It is estimated that the findé rwill be published in late 2012 or early 2013. Afe unable to predict the compliance
we might incur; however, the costs could be mateviée would seek recovery of any additional cost®ugh cost recovery riders or il
general rate case.
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Environmental Matters (Continued)
Solid and Hazardous Waste (Continued)

Manufactured Gas Plant SiteWe are reviewing and addressing environmental d¢immdi at a former manufactured gas plant site énGlity o'
Superior, Wisconsin, and formerly operated by SWL&R have been working with the WDNR to determime ¢xtent of contamination &
the remediation of contaminated locations. As otdmber 31, 2011 we have a $0.5 million liability for this site éra correspondir
regulatory asset as we expect recovery of remediatsts to be allowed by the PSCW.

Employees
At December 31, 2011, ALLETE had 1,371 employeésyloch 1,315 were full-time.

Minnesota Power and SWL&P had an aggregate 615@mes who are members of the IBEW Local 31. Theeotlabor agreements w
IBEW Local 31 expire on January 31, 2014.

BNI Coal had 157 employees, of which 117 are membéthe IBEW Local 1593. The labor agreement betwBNI Coal and IBEW Loc
1593 expired on March 31, 2011. A new labor agregnbetween BNI Coal and IBEW Local 1593 was acatme March 1, 2011. TI
contract went into effect on April 1, 2011 and egpion March 31, 2014.

Availability of Information
ALLETE makes its SEC filings, including its annwaport on Form 10-K, quarterly reports on Form 10e@rent reports on Formi8-and an'

amendments to those reports filed or furnished yansto Section 13(e) or 15(d) of the SecuritiesHaxge Act of 1934, available free
charge on ALLETE's website www.allete.com, as sasmeasonably practicable after they are electatipiiled with or furnished to the SEC.
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Executive Officers of the Registrant

As of February 15, 2012 , these are the execuffieecs of ALLETE:

Executive Officers Initial Effective Date

Alan R. Hodnik , Age 52

Chairman, President and Chief Executive Officerl-t BTE May 10, 2011
President and Chief Executive Officer — ALLETE May 1, 2010
President — ALLETE May 1, 2009

Chief Operating Officer — Minnesota Power May 8, 2007

Senior Vice President — Minnesota Power Operations September 22, 2006

Robert J. Adams, Age 49
Vice President — Business Development and Chidf Riicer May 13, 2008
Vice President — Utility Business Development February 1, 2004

Deborah A. Amberg, Age 46
Senior Vice President, General Counsel and Segretar January 1, 2006

Steven Q. DeVinck, Age 52
Controller and Vice President — Business Support December 5, 2009

Controller July 12, 2006

David J. McMillan , Age 50

Senior Vice President — External Affairs — ALLETE January 1, 2012
Senior Vice President — Marketing, Regulatory antlie Affairs — ALLETE January 1, 2006
Executive Vice President — Minnesota Power January 1, 2006

Mark A. Schober , Age 56
Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer July 1, 2006

Donald W. Stellmaker, Age 54
Vice President, Corporate Treasurer August 19, 2011

All of the executive officers have been employedusyfor more than five years in executive positions
There are no family relationships between any efakecutive officers. All officers and directorg alected or appointed annually.

The present term of office of the executive offecéisted above extends to the first meeting of Baard of Directors after the next anr
meeting of shareholders. Both meetings are schédateMay 8, 2012.
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Iltem 1A. Risk Factors

The factors discussed below, as well as other nmétion set forth in this Form 1K; which could materially affect our business, fical
condition and results of operations should be céise€onsidered. The risks and uncertainties dbscribelow are not the only ones we f
Additional risks and uncertainties that we are pisently aware of, or that we currently consicematerial, may also affect our busir
operations. Our business, financial condition sules of operations could suffer if the concerrtiSeeth below are realized.

Our results of operations could be negatively impded if our Large Power Customers experience an ecomic down cycle or fail tc
compete effectively in the global economy.

Our 10 Large Power Customers accounted for appmateiyn 34 percent of our 2011 consolidated operatéwgnue (31 percent in 2010;
percent in 2009). One of these customers accodatel?.6 percent of consolidated revenue in 20215 bercent in 2010; 8 percent in 20!
These customers are involved in cyclical industitieg by their nature are adversely impacted byieotc downturns and are subject to sti
competition in the global marketplace. An econorhdevnturn or failure to compete effectively in thielmal economy could have a mate
adverse effect on their operations and, conseqyesalild negatively impact our results of operadighwe are unable to remarket at sin
prices the energy that would otherwise have bekhtssuch Large Power Customers.

Our operations are subject to extensive governmenitaegulations that may have a negative impact on aubusiness and results ¢
operations.

We are subject to prevailing governmental poli@ad regulatory actions, including those of the EohiStates Congress, state legislature:
FERC, the MPUC, the PSCW, the NDPSC and the EP&s&lgovernmental regulations relate to allowedsrafereturn, capital structu
financings, industry rate and cost structure, aitjoh and disposal of assets and facilities, cqowson and operation of generati
transmission and distribution facilities (includitite ongoing maintenance and reliable operatiosuch facilities under established reliab
standards), recovery of purchased power and capitaktments, and present or prospective wholemaderetail competition. We must a
comply with permits, licenses and any other auttadions as issued by local, state and federal éggnthese governmental regulati
significantly influence our operating environmemdamay affect our ability to recover costs from auwstomers. We are required to h
numerous permits, approvals and certificates frbenagencies that regulate our business. We belfeveecessary permits, approvals
certificates have been obtained for existing op@natand that our business is conducted in accoedwith applicable laws; however, we
unable to predict the impact on our operating tedubm the future regulatory activities of anytbése agencies. Changes in regulations ¢
imposition of additional regulations could haveaalverse impact on our results of operations.

Our ability to obtain rate adjustments to maintaurrent rates of return depends upon regulatorjomatnder applicable statutes
regulations, and we cannot provide assurance #tatadjustments will be obtained or current autteatirates of return on capital will
earned. Minnesota Power and SWL&P, from time tcetifile rate cases with, or otherwise seek cosiwery authorization from, federal ¢
state regulatory authorities. If Minnesota Powett &WL&P do not receive an adequate amount of eliefiin rate cases, if rates are redu
if increased rates are not approved on a timelysbascosts are otherwise unable to be recoveremlgin rates, or if cost recovery is
achieved at the requested level, we may experiancadverse impact on our financial condition, ressaf operations and cash flows. We
unable to predict the impact on our business amdadipns results from future regulatory activittésany of these agencies.

Our operations could be adversely impacted by thehysical risks associated with climate change.

The scientific community generally accepts thatssioins of GHGs are linked to global climate charjgssical risks of climate change, s
as more frequent or more extreme weather evensggls in temperature and precipitation patternangés to ground and surface w
availability, and other related phenomena, coufgécafsome, or all, of our operations. Severe weatheother natural disasters could
destructive, which could result in increased coAtsextreme weather event within our utility seeviareas can also directly affect our ca
assets, causing disruption in service to custordeesto downed wires and poles or damage to otheratipg equipment. These all have
potential to affect our business and operations.
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ltem 1A. Risk Factors (Continued

Our operations could be adversely impacted by inititives designed to reduce the impact of GHG emissie such as CO, from our
generating facilities.

Proposals for voluntary initiatives to reduce GHseigh as CQ, a byproduct of burning fossil fuels, have been discdss#hin Minnesot:
among a group of Midwestern states that includesnigsota and in the United States Congress. Wertlyriese coal as the primary fuel in
percent of the energy produced by our generaticijtfes.

There is significant uncertainty regarding whethew laws or regulations will be adopted to redu¢¢G3 and what effect any such law:
regulations would have on us. If any new laws gutations are implemented, they could have a nadteffect on our results of operatic
particularly if implementation costs are not fulgcoverable from customers.

The cost of environmental emission allowances coulthve a negative financial impact on our operations

Minnesota Power is subject to numerous environnhelatgs and regulations which cap emissions and ccaelquire us to purche
environmental emissions allowances to be in compéaThe laws and regulations expose us to emisdliowance price increases which cc
increase our cost of operations. We are unableadigt the emission allowance pricing, regulat@gavery or ratepayer impact of these costs.

Our operations pose certain environmental risks whih could adversely affect our results of operationand financial condition.

We are subject to extensive environmental laws rgailations affecting many aspects of our presedt fature operations, including
quality, water quality, waste management, reclammathazardous wastes and natural resources. Thesednd regulations can resul
increased capital, operating and other costs, r@sdt of compliance, remediation, containment arahitoring obligations, particularly wi
regard to laws relating to power plant emissions.

The laws could, among other things, restrict thgpouof some existing facilities, limit the use sdme fuels required for the productior
electricity, require additional pollution contraj@pment and otherwise increase costs and leath& environmental considerations.

These laws and regulations generally require usbtain and comply with a wide variety of environrtadriicenses, permits, inspections
other approvals. Both public officials and privatéividuals may seek to enforce applicable envirental laws and regulations. We car
predict the financial or operational outcome of aglated litigation that may arise.

There are no assurances that existing environmeggalations will not be revised or that new regjolas seeking to protect the environm
will not be adopted or become applicable to us.ig&&l or additional regulations which result in E&sed compliance costs or additic
operating restrictions, particularly if those cost® not fully recoverable from customers, couldeha material effect on our results
operations.

We cannot predict with certainty the amount or tighdf all future expenditures related to environtaematters because of the difficulty
estimating such costs. There is also uncertainguintifying liabilities under environmental lawst impose joint and several liability on
potentially responsible parties. Violations of eéntstatutes, rules and regulations could exposeEAIE to third party disputes and potentii
significant monetary penalties, as well as othecgans for non-compliance.

We rely on access to financing sources and capitalarkets. If we do not have access to sufficient cagl in the amount and at the time:
needed, our ability to execute our business plansjake capital expenditures or pursue acquisitions tat we may otherwise rely on fo
future growth could be impaired.

We rely on access to capital markets as sourckguidity for capital requirements not satisfied byr cash flow from operations. If we are
able to access capital on satisfactory terms, Hi@yato implement our business plans may be askigr affected. Market disruptions o
downgrade of our credit ratings may increase thet ocbborrowing or adversely affect our abilitydocess financial markets. Such disrupt
could include a severe prolonged economic downtine pankruptcy of noaffiliated industry leaders in the same line ofihass or financi
services sector, deterioration in capital markeiditions, or volatility in commodity prices.
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ltem 1A. Risk Factors (Continued
The operation and maintenance of our generating falities involve risks that could significantly increase the cost of doing business.

The operation of generating facilities involves maisks, including startjp operations risks, breakdown or failure of faigti, the dependen
on a specific fuel source, failures in the supplgikbility or transportation of fuel, or the imgaaf unusual or adverse weather conditior
other natural events, as well as the risk of perforce below expected levels of output or efficienlog occurrence of any of which could re
in lost revenue, increased expenses or both. Afignt portion of Minnesota Powexfacilities were constructed many years ago. hiqudar,
older generating equipment, even if maintaineddooedance with good engineering practices, mayiregignificant capital expenditures
keep operating at peak efficiency. This equipmsrai$o likely to require periodic upgrading and ioyements due to changing environme
standards and technological advances. MinnesotaeiPoauld be subject to costs associated with amgkpected failure to produce pow
including failure caused by breakdown or forcedaget as well as repairing damage to facilities tdugtorms, natural disasters, wars, terr
acts and other catastrophic events. Further, oilityato successfully and timely complete capitaigrovements to existing facilities or ot
capital projects is contingent upon many varialbled subject to substantial risks. Should any stifdnte be unsuccessful, we could be sut
to additional costs and/or the write-off of our @stment in the project or improvement.

Our electrical generating operations may not have @ess to adequate and reliable transmission and thibution facilities to deliver
electricity to our customers.

Minnesota Power depends on transmission and disitib facilities owned by other utilities, and teanission facilities primarily operated
MISO, as well as its own such facilities, to detiitbe electricity we produce and sell to our custosn and to other energy suppliers
transmission capacity is inadequate, our abilitget and deliver electricity may be hindered. Waynhave to forgo sales or we may hav
buy more expensive wholesale electricity that igilable in the capacitgonstrained area. In addition, any infrastruct@aitufe that interrup
or impairs delivery of electricity to our customeruld negatively impact the satisfaction of oustomers with our service.

The price of electricity and fuel may be volatile.
Volatility in market prices for electricity and fueould adversely impact our results of operatiand financial condition and may result from:

e severe or unexpected weather conditi

e seasonality

« changes in electricity usay

e transmission or transportation constraints, inopiéita or inefficiencies

« availability of competitively priced alternative @ngy source:

« changes in supply and demand for ene

« changes in power production capatc

e outages at Minnesota Powegenerating facilities or those of our competj

e transportation of fue

« changes in production and storage levels of nagas| lignite, coal, crude oil and refined prodi
« natural disasters, wars, sabotage, terrorist aagher catastrophic events; :

- federal, state, local and foreign energy, enviromtale or other regulation and legislati

Since fluctuations in fuel expense related to egutated utility operations are passed on to custsrthrough our fuel clause, risk of volati
in market prices for fuel and electricity mainlypacts our sales to Other Power Suppliers.

The inability to retain and attract a qualified workforce including, but not limited to, executives, lkey employees and employees with
specialized skills, could have an adverse effect onr operations.

The success of our business heavily depends oleddership of our executive officers and key emeésyto implement our business strat
The inability to maintain a qualified workforce Inding, but not limited to, executives, key emplegeand employees with specialized sl
may negatively affect our ability to service ouristing or new customers, or successfully manage bmsiness or achieve our busir
objectives. Personnel costs may increase due t@etitme pressures or terms of collective bargajrigreements with union employees.
believe we have good relations with our memberthefiBEW Local 31 and IBEW Local 1593, and havetamts in place through January
2014, and March 31, 2014, respectively.
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Item 1A. Risk Factors (Continued

Market performance and other changes could decreashe value of pension and postretirement health bediit plan assets, which the
could require significant additional funding and increase annual expense.

The performance of the capital markets affectsviilaes of the assets that are held in trust tefydfiture obligations under our pension
postretirement benefit plans. We have significdligations to these plans and we hold significasess in these trusts. These assets are <
to market fluctuations and will yield uncertainugts, which may fall below our projected ratesetfirn. A decline in the market value of
pension and postretirement benefit plan assetsingitease the funding requirements under our bepkfis if the actual asset returns do
recover. Additionally, our pension and postretiraimgenefit plan liabilities are sensitive to chasge interest rates. As interest rates decr
the liabilities increase, potentially increasingnéfit expense and funding requirements. Our penaiah postretirement health care costs
generally recoverable in our electric rates aswadtb by our regulators. However, there is no cetyaihat regulators will continue to allc
recovery of these rising costs in the future. Se¢eNL6. Pension and Other Postretirement BeneditdPbf this Form 16 for more detail
regarding our current contributions and fundingusta

Emerging technologies may adversely affect our buséss operations.

While the pace of technology development has beereasing, the basic concept upon which our businesdel is based of how energ
produced, sold and delivered, has remained esBentiechanged. The development of new commerciaiple technology in areas suct
distributed generation, energy storage and enayggearvation could fundamentally change demanddoicarrent products and services.

We may be vulnerable to cyber attacks and terrorism

Man-made problems such as computer viruses, terrotisaft, and sabotage, may disrupt our operationshemth our operating results. (
generation plants, fuel storage facilities, trarssioin and distribution facilities may be targetdesforist activities that could disrupt our alyi
to produce or distribute some portion of our engrgyducts. We operate in a highly regulated ingustat requires the continued operatio
sophisticated information technology systems an@voik infrastructure. Our technology systems maybkerable to disability, failures
unauthorized access due to hacking, viruses, &etsroor terrorism and other causes. If our techgplsystems were to fail or be breached
we were unable to recover in a timely manner, wg bgunable to fulfill critical business functioaad sensitive, confidential and other «
could be compromised, which could have a matedakese effect on our results of operations, finahadndition and cash flows.

There may be risks associated with the operation adiny newly acquired assets as we can make no asswa that results from an)
acquisition will conform to our expectations. Thisin turn could adversely affect our results of operéions and financial condition.

Acquisitions are subject to uncertainties. Our aktasults may differ from our expectations dudatctors such as our ability to obtain tim
regulatory or governmental approvals, integratiod aperational issues and the ability to retain agament and other key personnel.

The continued downturn in economic conditions may dversely affect our strategy to sell our Florida ral estate.

ALLETE intends to sell its Florida land assets otigre or in bulk transactions when opportunitieisearHowever, if weak market conditic
continue, the impact on our future operations wddthe continuation of little to no sales whilél stcurring operating expenses suck
community development district assessments andeptyppgaxes. This could result in continued annuetl operating losses. See Nott
Operations and Significant Accounting Policies p&imment of Long-Lived Assets.

Iltem 1B. Unresolved Staff Comment

None.
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ltem 2. Properties

Properties are included in the discussion of owirigsses in Iltem 1 and are incorporated by referbacein.

ltem 3. Legal Proceeding
Material legal and regulatory proceedings are idetlin the discussion of our businesses in Itemdlase incorporated by reference herein.

United Taconite Lawsuitn January 2011, the Company was named as a defieimda lawsuit in the Sixth Judicial District ftine State ¢
Minnesota by one of our customer(United Taconite, LLC) property and businessrinfgtion insurers. In October 2006, United Tacc
experienced a fire as a result of the failure atage electrical protective equipment. The equiptanissue in the incident was not owtr
designed, or installed by Minnesota Power, but M#woia Power had provided testing and calibratiovices related to the equipment.
lawsuit alleges approximately $20 million in damsgelated to the fire. The Company believes thhag strong defenses to the lawsuit
intends to vigorously assert such defenses. Anuatcelated to any damages that may result fromldtwsuit has not been recorded a
December 31, 2011because a potential loss is not currently pragabwever, the Company believes it has adequatednce coverage !
potential loss.

Interim Rate DecisionOn February 22, 2011, Minnesota Power appealedMREC's interim rate decision in the Company's 2€Ht@ cas
with the Minnesota Court of Appeals. The Compangeaped the MPUC's finding of exigent circumstarioethe interim rate decision with t
primary arguments that the MPUC exceeded its stgtuguthority, made its decision without the suppdra body of record evidence and -
the decision violated public policy. The Companysides to resolve whether the MPUC's finding of erigcircumstances was lawful
application in future rate cases. In December 2@14,Minnesota Court of Appeals concluded thatNtUC did not err in finding exige
circumstances and properly exercised its discratiogetting interim rates. On January 4, 2012,Gleenpany filed a petition for review at -
Minnesota Supreme Court, but cannot predict theaué at this time.

CapX2020 Bemidji to Grand Rapids Line.November 2010 the MPUC approved a route permit for the BentinjGrand Rapids, Minnesc
line and construction for the 230 kV line projeohtmenced in January 201The Leech Lake Band of Ojibwe (LLBO) subsequengijueste
the MPUC suspend or revoke the route permit ar@sdsved the CapX2020 owners with a complaint fitedeech Lake Tribal Court assert
adjudicatory and regulatory authority over the pobj The CapXx2020 owners filed a request for datday judgment in the United Sta
District Court for the District of Minnesota (Digtt Court) that the project does not require LLB@nhsent to cross natnibal land within th
reservation. On June 22, 2011, the federal judgeeid a preliminary injunction directing the LLBOdease and desist its claims of tribal ¢
jurisdiction or from taking other actions to intemé with regulatory review, approval or project stoaction. The LLBO abandoned its motiol
dismiss the declaratory action because the DisBairt’'s injunction order had already dismissed the bfmsishe motion, namely, that t
District Court did not have jurisdiction to heaet@apX2020 ownersiction. The parties are now proceeding with discpead the CapX20:
owners do not anticipate any actions by the Dis€@igurt until after the completion of discovery s on May 31, 2012. The MPUC has t:
no action in the matter in light of ongoing litigat in federal and tribal courts. The CapX2020itig are vigorously defending against
LLBO actions.

We are involved in litigation arising in the nornwurse of business. Also in the normal courseusirtess, we are involved in tax, regula
and other governmental audits, inspections, ingattins and other proceedings that involve statefaderal taxes, safety, compliance \
regulations, rate base and cost of service issueang other things. We do not expect the outconthesfe matters to have a material effec
our financial position, results of operations osttlows.

ltem 4. Mine Safety Disclosure

The Dodd-Frank Wall Street Reform and ConsumereRtmn Act (DoddFrank Act) requires issuers to include in periodiports filed witl
the SEC certain information relating to citationsooders for violations of standards under the Faldeline Safety and Health Act of 1€
(Mine Safety Act). Information concerning mine ggfeiolations or other regulatory matters requibgdSection 1503(a) of the Dodetank Ac
and this Item are included in Exhibit 95 to thigiAdlO-K.
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Part Il
Item 5. Market for Registrant's Common Equity, Related Sto&holder Matters and Issuer Purchases of Equity Sedaities

Our common stock is listed on the NYSE under thalsyl ALE. We have paid dividends, without interfiopt on our common stock sir
1948. A quarterly dividend of $0.46 per share onaammon stock is payable on March 1, 2012, tchitiders of record on February 15, 2012.

The following table shows dividends declared pershand the high and low prices for our commouksfor the periods indicated as repo
by the NYSE:

2011 2010

Price Range Dividends Price Range Dividends
Quarter High Low Declared High Low Declared
First $39.3¢ $36.3! $0.44¢ $34.0( $29.9¢ $0.4<
Second 41.4¢ 37.81 0.44¢ 37.81 32.9( 0.4
Third 42.1( 35.51 0.44¢ 37.7¢ 33.1¢ 0.44
Fourth 42.5¢ 35.1¢ 0.44¢ 37.9¢ 34.81 0.44
Annual Total $1.7¢ $1.7¢

At February 1, 2012, there were approximately 20 ,6@mmon stock shareholders of record.
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Item 6. Selected Financial Dat
2011 201( 200¢ 200¢ 2007
Millions
Operating Revenue $928.: $907.( $759.! $801.( $841.7
Operating Expenses 778.2 771.2 653.1 679.2 710.C
Net Income 93.€ 74.¢ 60.7 83.C 89.t
Less: Non-Controlling Interest in Subsidiaries (0.2 (0.5 (0.3 0.t 1.9
Net Income Attributable to ALLETE 93.¢ 75.% 61.C 82.t 87.¢
Common Stock Dividends 62.1 60.& 56.5 50.4 44.:
Earnings Retained in Business $31.7 $14.5 $4.5 $32.1 $43.¢
Shares Outstanding — Millions
Year-End 37.E 35.¢ 35.2 32.¢ 30.¢
Average(a)
Basic 35.2 34.2 32.2 29.2 28.2
Diluted 35.4 34.2 32.2 29.2 28.4
Diluted Earnings Per Share $2.65 $2.1¢ $1.8¢ $2.8: $3.0¢
Total Assets $2,876.( $2,6009.: $2,393.. $2,134.¢ $1,644..
Long-Term Debt 857.¢ 771.¢€ 695.¢ 588.: 410.¢
Return on Common Equity 9.1% 7.8% 6.9% 10.7% 12.8%
Common Equity Ratio 56% 56% 57% 58% 64%
Dividends Declared per Common Share $1.7¢ $1.7¢ $1.7¢€ $1.72 $1.6¢
Dividend Payout Ratio 67% 80% 93% 61% 53%
Book Value Per Share at Year-End $28.71 $27.2¢ $26.3¢ $25.3% $24.1!
Capital Expenditures by Segment
Regulated Operations $228.( $256.¢ $299.: $317.( $220.¢
Investments and Other 18.¢ 3.€ 4.5 5.¢ 3.3
Total Capital Expenditures $246.¢ $260.( $303.7 $322.¢ $223.¢

(@) Excludes unallocated ESOP shar
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ltem 7. Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial@dition and Results of Operation:

The following discussion should be read in conjiorctvith our consolidated financial statements antes to those statements and the «
financial information appearing elsewhere in thépart. In addition to historical information, thellbwing discussion and other parts of
report contain forward-looking information that oives risks and uncertainties. Readers are cawtitma forwardlooking statements shot
be read in conjunction with our disclosures in fhism 10-K under the headings: “Forward-Lookingt&tgents” located on page 6 ariisk
Factors” located in Item 1A. The risks and uncettas described in this Form Xare not the only ones facing our Company. Addaiorisk:
and uncertainties that we are not presently awérercthat we currently consider immaterial, magoahffect our business operations.
business, financial condition or results of operaticould suffer if the concerns set forth in fhism 10-K are realized.

Overview

Regulated Operationsincludes our regulated utilities, Minnesota Powed &WL&P, as well as our investment in ATC, a Wissio-base:
regulated utility that owns and maintains electrésmsmission assets in parts of Wisconsin, Michjgdimnesota and lllinois. Minnesota Po\
provides regulated utility electric service in h@astern Minnesota to approximately 144,000 retestomers. Minnesota Power's raffitiated
municipal customers consist of 16 municipalitiedMimnesota and 1 private utility in Wisconsin. SWR&s also a private utility in Wiscon:
and a customer of Minnesota Power. SWL&P providegulated electric, natural gas and water servicendrthwestern Wisconsin
approximately 15,000 electric customers, 12,00Qinaatgas customers and 10,08@ter customers. Our regulated utility operatiomdude
retail and wholesale activities under the jurigdictof state and federal regulatory authoriti€See Item 1. Business — Regulated Operations
Regulatory Matters.)

Investments and Otheris comprised primarily of BNI Coal, our coal miningerations in North Dakota, ALLETE Properties, &lorida ree
estate investment, and ALLETE Clean Energy, forrmedune 2011, aimed at developing or acquiring tehgirojects that create ene
solutions via wind, solar, biomass, hydro, natgas/liquids, shale resources, clean coal and atean energy innovations. This segment
includes a small amount of non-rate base generatipproximately 5,500 acres of land availabledale in Minnesota, and earnings on |
and investments.

ALLETE is incorporated under the laws of Minnesd@aur corporate headquarters are in Duluth, Minreesstatistical information is presen
as of December 31, 2011unless otherwise indicated. All subsidiariesah®lly owned unless otherwise specifically indicht®eferences
this report to “we,” “us” and “our” are to ALLETEna its subsidiaries, collectively.

2011 Financial Overview
The following net income discussion summarizesragarison of the year ended December 31, 2011hetgear ended December 31, 2010 .

Consolidated net income attributable to ALLETE 2611 was $93.8 million , or $2.65 per diluted shammpared to $75.3 million , &2.1¢
per diluted share, for 2010rhis increase is due to higher net income atRmgulated Operations segment, partially offsetoydased losses
our Investments and Other segment (see below failée discussion). Earnings per share dilution $@68 as a result of additional share
common stock outstanding in 2011. (See Note 12.@omStock and Earnings Per Share.)

Regulated Operationsnet income attributable to ALLETE was $100.4 millism 2011 , compared to $79.8 million in 2018let income fc
2011 included the reversal of a $6.2 million deddrtax liability related to a revenue receivableniisota Power agreed to forgo as part
stipulation and settlement agreement in its 2018 case and the recognition of a $2.9 million inedax benefit related to the MPUC apprt
of our request to defer the retail portion of tar tharge taken in 2010 resulting from PPACA. Mebime for 2011 also included higher re
and municipal MWh sales, higher current cost recpvigler revenue, an increase in our financial imnes under the Minnesota Conserva
Improvement Program, an increase in wholesale rate$ increased renewable tax credits, which wargally offset by higher operating &
maintenance, depreciation, property tax, benefitiaterest expenses. Net income for 2010 was redhge $3.6 million charge resulting fr
PPACA and a $3.4 million (after-tax) charge for théte-off of a deferred fuel clause regulatoryeigelated to the 2008 rate case.

Investments and Otherreflected a net loss of $6.6 million for 2011 , quared to a net loss of $4.5 million in 201The increase in net Ic
was primarily due to higher business developmdatedncome tax and investment related expensesn€hloss in 2010 included an incc
tax benefit of $1.1 million (including interest)stdting from the completion of a state income tadia
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2011 Compared to 2010
(See Note 2. Business Segments for financial riebylisegment.)
Regulated Operations

Operating revenue increased $16.4 million , or 2 perceritom 2010 primarily due to increased sales toretail and municipal custome
increased current cost recovery rider revenue drifiiel clause recoveries, increased financialritiees under the Minnesota Conserva
Improvement Program, and implementation of finahiterates. These increases were partially offsetidwer sales to Other Pov
Suppliers.

Revenue and kilowatt-hour sales to retail and nipalccustomers increase d $21.5 million and 5.6cqetr, respectively, from 20:
primarily due to a 8.2 percent increase in kilowsdtir sales to our industrial customers and the emphtation of final retail rate
Increased revenue from those sales was offset B35 million and a 19.7 percent decrease in reweand kilowatthour sale:
respectively, to Other Power Suppliers. Sales tee©OPower Suppliers are sold at markased prices into the MISO market on a ¢
basis or through bilateral agreements of variouatins.

Quantity %
Kilowatt-hours Sold 2011 201C Variance Variance
Millions
Regulated Utility
Retail and Municipals
Residential 1,15¢ 1,15(C 9 0.8
Commercial 1,43 1,43¢ — —
Industrial 7,365 6,80¢ 561 8.2
Municipals 1,01z 1,00€ 7 0.7
Total Retail and Municipals 10,97( 10,39: 577 5.6
Other Power Suppliers 2,20t 2,74 (540 (29.7)
Total Regulated Utility Kilowatt-hours Sold 13,17¢ 13,13¢ 37 0.3

Revenue from electric sales to taconite customegsumted for 26 percent of consolidated operatavgmue in 2011 (24 percent in 20
Revenue from electric sales to paper, pulp and wwoduct customers accounted for 9 percent of dtaded operating revenue in 2(
(9 percent in 2010). Revenue from electric salgsgelines and other industrials accounted for regma of consolidated operating reve
in 2011 (6 percent in 2010).

Current cost recovery rider revenue increased $h#iRon due to higher capital expenditures prirhanielated to our Bison1 a
CapX2020 projects.

Fuel adjustment clause recoveries increased $8l@®mior 8 percent, from 2010 due to an increaskilowatt-hour sales and higher fi
and purchased power costs attributable to our ldi municipal customers.

Financial incentives under the Minnesota Consemnalinprovement Program increased $5.9 million otifitey a shared savings mode
recognize utility progress toward meeting the epesgyving goal of 1.5 percent established in thetNBeneration Energy Act of 2007.

Wholesale rate revenue increased $5.6 million céfig higher rates.
Operating expenses were consistent with 2010 overall.

Fuel and Purchased Power Experdgecreased $18.5 million , or 6 perceifitom 2010 primarily due to a 23 percent reductiotMWhs
purchased and lower purchased power prices. In,28dditional purchased power was required to mkieetngd major outages at Bosv
and Square Butte. Also included in 2010 was a $filon charge for the writexff of a deferred fuel clause regulatory assetteeldo th
2008 rate case. Fuel and purchased power expelasedréo our retail and municipal customers is veced through the fuel adjustm
clause (see Operating Revenue) and increased dhighter kilowatt-hour sales to these customers.
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2011 Compared to 2010 (Continued)
Regulated Operations (Continued)

Operating and Maintenance Expenisereased $9.2 million , or 3 percenfrom 2010 primarily reflecting increased propetx ant
benefit expense. Property tax expense increased iblion due to more taxable plant and higher satéhile benefits increased $
primarily due to increased pension costs as atresldwer discount rates.

Depreciation Expens@acreased $9.3 million , or 12 percent , from 20dflecting additional property, plant and equipmiargervice.
I nterest expense increased $3.5 million , or 11 percent , from 2@ti@narily due to higher long-term debt balances.

Income tax expense decreased $8.4 million , or 16 percent , from 2pditharily due to the reversal of a $6.2 million eleed tax liabilit
related to a revenue receivable Minnesota Powerealgto forgo as part of a stipulation and settldnagmeement in its 2010 rate ci
increased renewable tax credits of $3.2 million #rerecognition of a norecurring $2.9 million income tax benefit relatedthe MPU(
approval of our request to defer the retail portodrthe tax charge taken in 2010 resulting from BRAAIso contributing to the decre:
was a non-recurring income tax charge of $3.6 amilliesulting from PPACA in the first quarter of 20{See Note 5. Regulatory Matters.)

Investments and Other

Operating revenue increased $4.8 million , or 7 percenfrom 2010 reflecting a $5.6 million increase @venue at BNI Coal, partia
offset by a $0.9 million decrease in revenue at BLE Properties. BNI Coal, which operates under stplus contract, recorded higl
sales revenue as a result of higher expenses ih ?8&e Operating Expense.)

ALLETE Properties 2011 2010
Revenue and Sales Activity Quantity Amount Quantity Amount
Dollars in Millions

Revenue from Land Sales

Acres(a) 3 $0.2 — —
Revenue from Land Sales 0.4 —
Other Revenuéb) 0.¢ $2.2
Total ALLETE Properties Revenue $1.2 $2.2

(&) Acreage amounts are shown on a gross basis, intudetlands

(b) For the year ended December 31, 2011, Other Revierwlgled mitigation bank credit sales, financedame, and a forfeited deposit on a land
contract. For the year ended December 31, 2010eO®evenue included a $0.7 million pretax gain ttuthe return of sellefinanced property frol
an entity which filed for Chapter 11 bankruptcydime 2009. Also included in 2010 were $0.3 milbdforfeited deposits and $0.3 million relater
a lawsuit settlement.

Operating expenses increased $7.0 million, or 9 percent, from 2010ewfng higher expenses at BNI Coal of $5.1 millfmmarily due ti
higher fuel costs; these costs were recovered girtloe cosplus contract. (See Operating Revenue.) The remginicrease in 2011 w
primarily attributable to higher business developtmeterest and investmergfated expenses. Also contributing to the incréasgense
was a $1.7 million pretax impairment charge takerABLETE Properties. In the fourth quarter of 201N impairment analysis
estimated future undiscounted cash flows was cdeduend indicated that the cash flows were not aafeqto recover the carrying basi
certain properties not strategic to our three mdmrelopment projects. These increases were partifiset by a reduction in operati
expenses at ALLETE Properties.

Income Taxes — Consolidated

For the year ended December 31, 2011 , the effed¢tix rate was 27.6 percent (37.2 percent for e wnded December 31, 2010
Excluding additional tax benefits recorded as altexf the MPUC approval of our request to defer thtail portion of the tax charge ta
in 2010 as a result of PPACA and the reversal déferred tax liability related to a revenue recbigathat Minnesota Power agree(
forgo as part of a stipulation and settlement ages# in its 2010 rate case, the 2011 effectiverdde was 32.7 percent. The effective
rate deviated from the statutory rate (approxinyaddl percent) in each period due to deductiongiépietion, investment tax credits, i
renewable tax credits. (See Note 14. Income TaxeEsp.)
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2010 Compared to 2009
(See Note 2. Business Segments for financial riebylisegment.)
Regulated Operations

Operating revenue increased $153.7 million, or 23 percent, from 2608 to higher MPU@pproved retail rates (subject to final order)
the absence of an accrual for prior year retaé rafunds related to our 2008 retail rate caseo Atmtributing to increased revenue v
higher transmission revenues, higher fuel and @seti power recoveries, and increased sales td aethimunicipal customers. Thi
increases were partially offset by lower sales toeDPower Suppliers.

Interim retail rates authorized by the MPUC in Dmber 2009 and effective January 1, 2010, resulteahiincrease of approximately ¢
million.

Retail rate refunds related to 2008 resulting fribi 2009 MPUC rate order were recorded in 2009rasdlted in a reduction in 20
revenues of $7.6 million.

Transmission revenues increased $24.3 million f28®9 primarily due to revenues related to the 2BMIC transmission line purchas
from Square Butte on December 31, 2009.

Higher fuel and purchased power recoveries, aloitlg an increase in retail and municipal kilowhtr sales, combined for a total reve
increase of $115.5 million. Fuel and purchased paweoveries increased due to an increase in fuglparchased power expense. |
Fuel and Purchased Power Expense.)

The increase in kilowattour sales to retail and municipal customers watigtig offset by decreased revenue from marketiogver tc
Other Power Suppliers, which decreased $50.3 millin2010. Sales to Other Power Suppliers are ableharketbased prices into t
MISO market on a daily basis or through bilategregments of various durations.

Total kilowatthour sales to retail and municipal customers irsgda29.1 percent from 2009 primarily due to anease in sales to ¢
taconite customers. Increased revenue from inddistales was partially offset by a 32.3 percentekse in kilowattiour sales to Oth
Power Suppliers.

Quantity %
Kilowatt-hours Sold 201( 200¢  Variance Variance
Millions
Regulated Utility
Retail and Municipals
Residential 1,15( 1,164 (14) (1.2
Commercial 1,43: 1,42( 13 0.9
Industrial 6,80¢ 4,47¢ 2,32¢ 52.C
Municipals 1,00¢ 997 14 14
Total Retail and Municipals 10,39: 8,051 2,34z 29.1
Other Power Suppliers 2,74f 4,05¢ (1,311 (32.9
Total Regulated Utility Kilowatt-hours Sold 13,13¢ 12,107 1,031 8.5

Revenue from electric sales to taconite customessumted for 24 percent of consolidated operatévgmue in 2010 (15 percent in 20!
The increase in revenue from our taconite customes partially offset by a decrease in revenue fedettric sales to Other Pov
Suppliers, which accounted for 12 percent of cadatéd operating revenue in 2010 (20 percent iO20Revenue from electric sales
paper, pulp and wood product customers accountel fiercent of consolidated operating revenue ih02@® percent in 2009). Revet
from electric sales to pipelines and other indaktraccounted for 6 percent of consolidated opggagvenue in 2010 (7 percent in 2009).

Operating expenses increased $118.0 million, or 21 percent, from 2009.
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2010 Compared to 2009 (Continued)
Regulated Operations (Continued)

Fuel and Purchased Power Expemsereased $45.6 million, or Jgercent, from 2009. The increase was partiallytduggher fuel costs
$18.6 million resulting from a 10 percent incre@secoal generation at our facilities and higherlgmaces and related transportati
Purchased power expense also increased $19.1nmiditecting increased kilowakteur purchases partially offset by lower marketes
Also included in the fourth quarter of 2010 wassad$million charge for the writeff of a deferred fuel clause regulatory asseteelo th
2008 rate case, which was determined to be no fopgebable of recovery in future utility rates. 2009, Minnesota Powes’coa
generating fleet produced fewer kilowatturs of electricity due to planned outages to en@nt environmental retrofits and to respor
decreased demand from our taconite customers.

Operating and Maintenance Expenisereased $56.5 million, or 24 percent, from 208flecting additional MISO expenses of $1
million relating to the 250 kV DC transmission lirmirchased from Square Butte on December 31, 206igfer plant outage a
maintenance of $10.2 million, higher environmemézlgent expenses of $6.1 million, increased labhdreanployee benefit costs of $1
million and increased property taxes of $3.0 milldue to more taxable plant.

Depreciation Expensacreased $15.9 million, or 26 percent, from 208@ecting higher property, plant, and equipmentethin service.

Interest expense increased $4.0 million, or 14 percent, from 200Bnarily due to additional longerm debt issued to fund new cay
investments and for general corporate purposes.

Income tax expense increased $16.2 million, or 46 percent, from 200@nprily due to higher pretax income and a meourring incom
tax charge of $3.6 million from the deduction operses reimbursed under Medicare Part D.

Investments and Other

Operating revenue decreased $5.8 million, or 8 percent, from 2008&nprily due to a $4.8 million decrease in revenaenfnonregulate:
generation. This decrease was primarily the resfuite transfer of a small generating facility tegrlated Operations in November 2(
This decrease was partially offset by a $1.3 milliacrease in revenue at BNI Coal, which operatefena cosplus contract and recorc
higher sales revenue as a result of higher expem&€: 0. (See Operating Expense.)

Revenue at ALLETE Properties decreased $1.8 milliom 2009 primarily due to lack of land sales dgri2010. This was due to
continued lack of demand for our properties assaltef poor real estate market conditions in lariDuring 2009, ALLETE Properti
sold approximately 35 acres of property locatedidetof its three main development projects foB$8illion.

ALLETE Properties 2010 2009
Revenue and Sales Activity Quantity Amount Quantity Amount
Dollars in Millions

Revenue from Land Sales

Acres(a) — — 35 $3.¢
Revenue from Land Sal¢) — 3.8
Other Revenuéc) $2.2 0.2
Total ALLETE Properties Revenue $2.2 $4.C

(&) Acreage amounts are shown on a gross basis, ingugetlands and n«-controlling interest

(b) Reflects total contract sales price on closed laadsactions. Land sales are recorded using a pesgg-of-completion methoc

(c) Other Revenue included a $0.7 million pretax gaire010 due to the return of sellénanced property from an entity which filed for agter 1:
bankruptcy in June 2009. Also included in 2010 v&&& million of forfeited deposits and $0.3 millielated to a lawsuit settlement.

Operating expenses increased $0.1 million from 2009 reflecting higlespenses at BNI Coal of $1.8 million primarily dieehigher diest
fuel costs in 2010 which were recovered throughdbstplus contract (See Operating Revenue) and higheatdm expenses of $:
million. These increases were mostly offset by lower remniated generation expenses of $2.2 million prilsndue to the transfer of
small generating facility to Regulated Operatiam®November 2009, and decreased expenses at ALLEGjieRies of $2.0 million due
reductions in the cost of land sold and generaladinistrative expenses.
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2010 Compared to 2009 (Continued)
Investments and Other (Continued)

Other income increased $4.8 million from 2009 primarily due 4 million lower equity losses on investments @1Q.
Income Taxes — Consolidated

For the year ended December 31, 2010, the effetéixerate was 37.2 percent (33.7 percent for ther yeded December 31, 20(
Excluding additional tax expense recorded as dtre$the elimination of the deduction for expensesnbursed under Medicare Par
the 2010 effective tax rate was 33.8 percent. Thfiective tax rate deviated from the statutory réa@proximately 41 percent)
comparable amounts in each period due to deducfmmdepletion, investment tax credits, and winddurction tax credits. The 20
effective tax rate also included the effect of detthins for expenses reimbursed under Medicare®art

Critical Accounting Policies

The preparation of financial statements and reldisdosures in conformity with GAAP requires maeagnt to make various estimates
assumptions that affect amounts reported in theal@tated financial statements. These estimatesaasgmptions may be revised, which

have a material effect on the consolidated findrst@ements. Actual results may differ from thesémates and assumptions. These po
are discussed with the Audit Committee of our Boafr@irectors on a regular basis. The followingresgent the policies we believe are r
critical to our business and the understandinguofresults of operations.

Regulatory Accounting.Our regulated utility operations are accountedriaccordance with the accounting standards foeffexts of certai
types of regulation. These standards require u®ftect the effect of regulatory decisions in ourahcial statements. Regulatory asse
liabilities arise as a result of a difference beawe&AAP and the accounting treatment for certamg imposed by the regulatory agen:
Regulatory assets represent incurred costs tha baen deferred as they are probable for recovegustomer rates. Regulatory liabilit
represent obligations to make refunds to custormedsamounts collected in rates for which the relatests have not yet been incurred.

The recoverability of regulatory assets is assessed quarterly basis by considering factors sig;tat not limited to, changes in regula
rules and rate orders issued by applicable regylaigencies. The assumptions and judgments use@dulatory authorities may have
impact on the recovery of costs, the rate of returnnvested capital, and the timing and amourasskits to be recovered by rates. A chan
these assumptions may result in a material impactuo results of operations. (See Note 5. Regujad#tatters.)

Pension and Postretirement Health and Life Actuarib Assumptions.We account for our pension and postretirement lieobfigations it
accordance with the accounting standards for défipenefit pension and other postretirement plarses& standards require the us
assumptions in determining our obligations andaheual cost of our pension and postretirement litsnéfn important actuarial assumpt
for pension and other postretirement benefit plarthke expected long-term rate of return on plaetss In establishing the expected Idegy
return on plan assets, we take into account theahddbng-term historical performance of our plarsats, the actual longgrm historice
performance for the type of securities we are iteeg&, and apply the historical performance Ltiligthe target allocation of our plan asse
forecast an expected logrm return. Our expected rate of return is thdecsed after considering the results of each obé¢hfactors, i
addition to considering the impact of current eguitoconditions, if applicable, on lorntgrm historical returns. Our pension asset allocat
December 31, 2011 , was approximately 52 percemtyegecurities, 27 percent debt, 16 percent peivaguity, and 5 percental estate. O
postretirement health and life asset allocatiobDetember 31, 2011 , was approximately 51 percemtyegecurities, 39 percent debt, ahtl
percentprivate equity. Equity securities consist of a rafxmarket capitalization sizes with domestic anrinational securities. We currer
use an expected long-term rate of return of 8.&gu@in our actuarial determination of our pension atigep postretirement expense.

review our expected long-term rate of return asdiompannually and will adjust it to respond to chang market conditions. A onguarte
percent decrease in the expected lterga rate of return would increase the annual es@dar pension and other postretirement benefi
approximately $1.3 million , pretax.
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Critical Accounting Policies (Continued)

The discount rate is computed using a yield cudjested for ALLETES projected cash flows to match our plan charastiesi The yield cun
is determined using high-quality, lotgrm corporate bond rates at the valuation date.b@leve the adjusted discount curve used in
comparison does not materially differ in duratiomdacash flows from our pension and other postmeié@ obligation. In 2011 we used
discount rate of 5.40 percefdr our actuarial determination of our pension arler postretirement expense. We review our discoate
annually and will adjust it to respond to changimgrket conditions. A onquarter percent decrease in the discount rate wiogkgase tt
annual expense for pension and other postretirerhentfits by approximately $2.0 million pretax. (See Note 16. Pension and C
Postretirement Benefit Plans.)

Impairment of Long-Lived Assets.We review our londived assets for indicators of impairment in aceorck with the accounting standz
for property, plant and equipment on a quarterlyid©d onglived assets that we evaluated include our reatestssets of ALLETE Properti
(See Note 1. Operations and Significant AccounBodicies.)

Taxation. We are required to make judgments regarding thenpial tax effects of various financial transanSand our ongoing operation:
estimate our obligations to taxing authorities. Séhéax obligations include income, real estatesates/use taxes. Judgments related to in
taxes require the recognition in our financial estaénts of the largest tax benefit of a tax positfat is “more-likely-than-notto be sustaine
on audit. Tax positions that do not meet the “nldeely-than-not” criteria are reflected as a tax liability in accande with the accounti
standards for uncertainty in income taxes. We taovaluation allowance against our deferred taetasto the extent it is more-likely-thaont
that some portion or all of the deferred tax asgknot be realized.

Outlook

ALLETE is an energy company committed to earnirfgnancial return that rewards our shareholdersvadlfor reinvestment in our busines
and sustains growth. The Company has a key teng-objective of achieving a minimum average ewysiper share growth of 5 percent
year and maintaining a competitive dividend paydut.accomplish this, we intend to take the actinasessary to earn our allowed rat
return in our regulated businesses, while we pugsaeth initiatives in renewable energy, transntiesind other energy-centric businesses.

We believe that, over the lorigrm, less carbon intensive and more sustainablewable energy sources will play an increasinglpanan
role in our natiors energy mix. Minnesota Power is developing add#ticenewable resources which will be used to megpilated renewalk
supply requirements. In addition, in June 2011 eatablished ALLETE Clean Energy, a whollyned subsidiary of ALLETE. ALLETE Cle
Energy operates independently of Minnesota Poweletelop or acquire capital projects aimed at argatnergy solutions via wind, sol
biomass, hydro, natural gas/liquids, shale ressymean coal and other clean energy innovatioht EXE Clean Energy intends to marke
electric utilities, cooperatives, municipalitiesdependent power marketers and large end-userssaldarth America through longrm PPAs
and will be subject to applicable state and fedexglilatory approvals.

For wind development, we will capitalize on oursiig presence in North Dakota through BNI Coal, @mcently acquired DC transmiss
line and our Bison 1, 2 and 3 wind projects. Weehavongterm business presence and established landowlaéipnships in North Dakot
See Renewable Energy below for more discussioruoBizon 1, 2 and 3 wind projects.

We plan to make investments in Upper Midwest traéssion opportunities that strengthen or enhanceré¢b@®mnal transmission grid or te
advantage of our geographical location betweencesunf renewable energy and end users. MinnesetarR® participating with other regiol
utilities in making regional transmission investrtees a member of the CapX2020 initiative. In dddjtwe plan to make additiot
investments to fund our pro rata share of AF @iture capital expansion program. Both the Ca@202@itiative and our investment in ATC .
discussed in more detail under Transmission below.

We are also exploring investing in other energytterbusinesses that will complement our megulated renewable energy busines
leverage demand trends related to transmissiorircgmeental control or energy efficiency.

ALLETE intends to sell its Florida land assets otiare or in bulk transactions, and reinvest thecpeals in its growth initiatives. ALLE1
Properties does not intend to acquire additiorell estate.
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Outlook (Continued)

Regulated Operations.Minnesota Power’s longerm strategy is to maintain its competitively pdcproduction of energy, while comply
with environmental permit conditions and renewaklguirements, and to earn our allowed rate of neteeping the cost of energy produc
competitive enables Minnesota Power to effectiwglgnpete in the wholesale power markets and minisnie&il rate increases to help main
the viability of its customers. As part of maintaig cost competitiveness, Minnesota Power intendseduce its exposure to possible fu
carbon and GHG legislation by reshaping its gefmrgiortfolio, over time, to reduce its reliance ayal. We will monitor and review propos
environmental regulations and may challenge thbaeddd considerable cost with limited environmeh&nefit. We will continue to purs
current cost recovery rider approval for environtaéand renewable investments, and will work witi kegislators and regulators to earn a
return. In 2011 our Regulated Operations earningewaear its allowed rate of return. 2011 was p@djt impacted by the reversal of a §
million deferred tax liability related to a 201Qt@acase stipulation and settlement agreement, tendetognition of a $2.9 million income
benefit related to the deferral of the retail pmmtiof the tax charge taken in 2010 resulting frina PPACA. We project that our Regule
Operations will not earn its allowed rate of returr2012.

Regulatory Matters. Entities within our Regulated Operations segmeatuarder the jurisdiction of the MPUC, the FERC e PSCW. Se
Item 1. Business — Regulated Operatioi®egulatory Matters for discussion of regulatory terat within our Minnesota, FERC, Wisconsin
North Dakota jurisdictions

Industrial Customers . Electric power is one of several key inputs in theonite mining, paper production, and pipelingustries. In 2011
approximately 56 percent ( 52 percent in 2010 pwf Regulated Utility kilowathour sales were made to our industrial customehséch
includes the taconite, paper, pulp and wood prajaetd pipeline industries.

According to the American Iron and Steel Instit(A4¢Sl), an association of North American steel proers, U.S. raw steel production oper
at approximately 75 percent of capacity in 2011 pébcent in 2010, 50 percent in 2009). Annual té#eoproduction in Minnesota w
approximately 40 million tons in 2011, near fulbduction capacity (36 million tons in 2010, 18 iwitl tons in 2009).

The AISI and the World Steel Association, an asstom of approximately 170 steel producers, natiana regional steel industry associat
and steel research institutes representing arobngegcent of world steel production, project U.@ekconsumption will be similar in 20
compared to 2011. Based on these projections, #@thite production levels in Minnesota are algoeexed to be similar to 2011.

Minnesota Power’s four major paper mills ran atyery near, full capacity for the majority of 20 imilar levels are expected in 2012.

Prospective Additional Loar Minnesota Power is pursuing new wholesale andlietis in and around its service territory. Cuthgrsevere
companies in northeastern Minnesota continue tgrpss in the development of natural resource bpsgedcts that represent loigrm growitt
potential and load diversity for Minnesota Powehne3e potential projects are in the ferrous andfemous mining and steel industries

include PolyMet, Mesabi Nugget, USS Corporato®xpansion at its Keewatin taconite facility, EsSteel Limited Minnesota (Esst
Magnetation, and Mining Resources, LLC (Mining Reses). We cannot predict the outcome of theseept®j but if these projects

constructed, Minnesota Power could serve up tocqumately 600 MW of new retail or wholesale load.

PolyMet. Minnesota Power has executed a long-term contviht PolyMet, a new industrial customer planningstart a coppenickel anc
precious metal (noferrous) mining operation in northeastern MinnesBtalyMet began work on a Supplemental Draft Envinental Impax
Statement (SDEIS) in 2010. The SDEIS addressesa@maental issues, most notably those dealing witind exchange between PolyMet
the U.S. Forest Service (USFS). This land exchangetical to the mine site development. The ERW ¢he USFS joined as lead agencie
the SDEIS process. Release of the SDEIS is expétiate 2012, to be followed by a public reviewdaaomment period. Assuming succes
completion of the SDEIS process and subsequerdrnssuof permits, Minnesota Power could begin tqplupetween 4520 MW of power il
approximately 2014 through a 10-year power supphtract that would begin upon start-up.

Mesabi NuggeiThe construction of the initial Mesabi Nugget fagils essentially complete and the first productaxcurred in January 20:
Steel Dynamics, Inc. (Steel Dynamics), the majooityner of Mesabi Nugget, has indicated that pradanatampup activities will continue i
2012, with full production levels expected to baaieed during the year. Mesabi Nugget is also ctlyr@ursuing permits for taconite mini
activities on lands formerly mined by Erie Miningg@pany and LTV Steel Mining Company near Hoyt Lakdsnesota. Permits to mine .
expected by the end of 2013. Mining activities dobkgin in 2014, which would allow Mesabi Nugget s®ifsupply its own taconi
concentrates and would result in increased elettiaads above the current 19 MW lotegm power supply contract with Mesabi Nug
lasting at least through 2017.
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Industrial Customers (Continued)

Keewatin Taconite In February 2008, USS Corporation announced tenirto restart a pellet line at its Keewatin Tatmprocessing facilit
(Keetac). If restarted, this pellet line, which Haesen idle since 1980, could bring 3.6 million t@fsadditional pellet making capability
northeastern Minnesota and could result in ovelMB¥ of additional load. Project permits have beeocereed and should the project
approved by USS Corporation's Board of Directorshanfirst half of 2012, construction activitiesositd commence immediately thereafter \
production expected to begin in 2015.

City of Nashwaukln February 2011, the Company entered into a namdta-based wholesale electric sales agreement with the df
Nashwauk for all of the Ci's electric service requirements, effective May Q@12 through April 30, 2022. On July 27, 2011, thigy @f
Nashwauk entered into a lc-term electric service agreement with Essar fovieerbeginning in 2013 for Essarproposed taconite facili
The proposed taconite facility would result in 201110 MW of additional load for Minnesota Powergdds currently under construction.
expansion to include a direct reduced iron and-stexking facility is also being considered for 20Whder the terms of a facilities construc
agreement, Minnesota Power has begun site prepaatid transmission construction for a 230 kV tnagission line which is expected to ¢
approximately $28 million and is scheduled to beenvice in April 2013.

MagnetationIn December 2011, the MPUC approved Minnesota Pewéactric service agreement with Magnetation. hgagtion, a compal
in northeastern Minnesota that will produce irore ooncentrate from lograde natural ore tailing basins, already minedigtites and newl
mined iron formations. The plant near Taconite, Misota is under construction and is expected tinbggerations in the spring of 2C
resulting in 5 to 7 MW of additional load for Minsata Power.

In October 2011, Magnetation and integrated steledmaAK Steel Corporation (AK Steel), announceaiatj venture, Magnetation LLC, tt
could lead to the construction of two facilitiesan€alumet and Coleraine, Minnesota. This wouldltés a total of 10 to 15 MW of additior
load for Minnesota Power. Magnetation and AK Stesle also indicated the potential for a three oiillton pellet plant near the Colere
plant, which would result in 15 to 25 MW of addital load in 2016.

Mining Resourcesin November 2011, Minnesota Power entered into lantréc service agreement with Mining Resourcegpiat venture
between Magnetation and Steel Dynamics. Mining Ress has begun construction on a $50 million piear Chisholm, Minnesota to sup
iron ore concentrate to Mesabi Nugget until it Insgits own mining operations. The electric sendgeeement was approved by the MPU(
February 3, 2012. Operations are expected to hedate 2012, resulting in 5 to 7 MW of additione&d for Minnesota Power.

Renewable Energy . In February 2007, Minnesota enacted a law requigBgpercent of Minnesota Powertotal retail energy sales
Minnesota be from renewable energy sources by 20B8.law also requires Minnesota Power to meetimtenilestones of 12 percent
2012, 17 percent by 2016 and 20 percent by 2020né&&iota Power has developed a plan to meet thevableegoals set by Minnesota and
included this plan in its 2010 Integrated ResoWrtzn. The MPUC approved our Integrated Resource iRlés final order issued on May
2011. The law allows the MPUC to modify or delayeatiieg a milestone if implementation will cause $figant ratepayer cost or techni
reliability issues. If a utility is not in compliae with a milestone, the MPUC may order the utildyconstruct facilities, purchase renew:
energy or purchase renewable energy credits. Weuwrently on track to exceed the 12 percent reb&vanergy requirement by the ent
2012.

Minnesota Power has taken several steps to begicuérg its renewable energy strategy through leeyewable projects that will ensure
meet the identified state mandate. We have exedutedongierm PPAs with an affiliate of NextEra Energy, Inior wind energy in Nori
Dakota (Oliver Wind | and II). Other steps incluiaconite Ridge, our wind facility located in noréiséern Minnesota, our Bison 1, 2 ar
wind development projects and our Hibbard Biomaggrdde Project.

North Dakota Wind DevelopmerWe use our 46%nile, 250 kV DC transmission line that runs fromn@e, North Dakota, to Dulut
Minnesota to transport increasing amounts of wimergy from North Dakota while gradually phasing coélbased electricity delivered to «
system over this transmission line from Square@stignite coal-fired generating unit.
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Bison 1 is an 82 MW wind project in North Dakotal permitting has been received, the first phass w@mpleted in 2010and the secol
phase was completed in January 2012. Phase ongléucthe construction of a 22 -mile, 230 kV trarssiwin line and the installation sikteet
2.3 MW wind turbines. Phase two consisted of ttstailtation of fifteen 3MW wind turbines. Bison 1 is expected to have altptoject cost ¢
$177 million , of which $171.5 million was spentdahgh December 31, 2011. In 2009 , the MPUC apmtdMinnesota Powes’ petitior
seeking current cost recovery for investments axpkreditures related to Bison 1 and in July 2Q1the MPUC approved our petiti
establishing rates effective August 1, 2010n November 3, 2011, the MPUC issued an orderoappg our petition to update the rates
additional investments and expenditures relategigon 1.

Bison 2 and Bison 3 are both 105 MW wind projeot®brth Dakota which are expected to be completethé end of 2012 Site preparatic
is currently underway for both projects and totadj@ct costs for Bison 2 and Bison 3 are estimabele approximately $160 millioeach, @
which $37.0 million and $14.7 millionrespectively, was spent through December 31, 20h1September 8, 2011, and November 2, 201
MPUC approved Minnesota Powgmetition seeking current cost recovery for inmesits and expenditures related to Bison 2 and B¥
respectively. On August 10, 2011 , and October2l?,1, the NDPSC issued a Certificate of Site Compatybiior Bison 2 and Bison
respectively, which authorized site constructiomammence. We anticipate filing petitions with ®UC in the first half of 2012 to establ
customer billing rates for the approved cost recpve

Manitoba Hydro.Minnesota Power has a long-term PPA with Manitolyard, for the purchase of 3@W of capacity and energy associe
with that capacity, which expires in April 20151 addition, Minnesota Power signed a separatk Wih Manitoba Hydro to purchase surg
energy through April 2022 . This energy-only trasiim primarily consists of surplus hydro energy Manitoba Hydro$ system that
delivered to Minnesota Power on a rnfinm basis. The pricing is based on forward magkétes. Under this agreement with Manitoba Hy
Minnesota Power will be purchasing at least ondianilMWh of energy over the contract term. On Ma8dh 2011, the MPUC approved tt
PPA with Manitoba Hydro.

On May 19, 2011, Minnesota Power and Manitoba Hyslgmed an additional lonigrm PPA. The PPA calls for Manitoba Hydro to
250 MW of capacity and energy to Minnesota Powerlfe years beginning in 2020. The capacity pricadpisted annually until 2020 b
change in a governmental inflationary index. Thergwg price is based on a formula that includesramual fixed price component adjusted f
change in a governmental inflationary index anchtural gas index, as well as market prices. Onalgn26, 2012, the MPUC approved
PPA with Manitoba Hydro. The agreement requiresstroiction of additional transmission capacity betw&lanitoba and Hibbing, Minnesc
In addition, we are exploring other regional grithancements that would allow for the movement ofamenewable energy in the Up
Midwest while at the same time strengthening eiecgliability in the region.

Hibbard Biomass Upgrade ProjecHibbard is a 51 MW biomass/coal/natural gas faciliicated in Duluth, Minnesota. The biom
optimization project, which was conditionally apped by the MPUC in September 2009, is designed\terhge existing assets to incre
biomass renewable energy production at the faddityMinnesota Power customers.

We will seek current cost recovery authorizatiaamnirthe MPUC in 2012, along with any necessary pgimgiapprovals required to comme
construction. The project has an expected cosppfaximately $22 million and an expected completiate of 2013.

Integrated Resource Plan . The MPUC approved our Integrated Resource Platsifirial order issued on May 6, 2011. A requireddbaar
diversification study evaluating the impact of dttdial EPA regulations over the next two decades f@d on February 6, 2012. Through
study Minnesota Power evaluated environmental ciampé scenarios for different potential rangesutfife EPA regulation stringency
determine prominent power supply trends and impawctsustomers. This study will advise of the negps in our on-going, lonterm resourc
planning process for consideration in our nextdraéed Resource Plan submittal, which must be fikgti the MPUC no later than July
2013. (See Item 1. Business — Regulatory OperatidRsgulatory Matters.)

Transmission . We plan to make investments in upper Midwest trassion opportunities that strengthen or enhancedbmnal transmissic
grid. This includes the CapX2020 initiative, invasits in our own transmission assets, investmentdhier regional transmission assets
ourselves or in combination with others), and omestment in ATC.
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Transmission Investmentd/e have an approved cost recovery rider in placedaain transmission expenditures and the coatlruse of ot
2009 billing factor was approved by the MPUC in M)A 1. The billing factor allows us to charge cetiail customers on a current basis fol
costs of constructing certain transmission faetitplus a return on the capital invested. On JAn2@11, we filed an updated billing factor
includes additional transmission projects and egpsnwhich we expect to be approved in 2012.

CapX2020. Minnesota Power is a participant in the CapX202@aitive which represents an effort to ensure eledransmission ar
distribution reliability in Minnesota and the swiraling region for the future. CapX2020, which cetsbf electric cooperatives, municipals
investor-owned utilities, including Minnesogalargest transmission owners, has assessed th@mission system and projected growt
customer demand for electricity through 2020. Stadihow that the regiantransmission system will require major upgrades expansion
accommodate increased electricity demand as wealliggort renewable energy expansion through 2020.

Minnesota Power is currently participating in thegpX2020 projects: the Fargo, North Dakota taC&tud, Minnesota project, the Montice
Minnesota to St. Cloud, Minnesota project, whichetther total a 23&ile, 345 kV line from Fargo, North Dakota to Margllo, Minnesotz
and the 70-mile, 230 kV line between Bemidji, Miso&a and Minnesota PowsiBoswell Energy Center near Grand Rapids, Minsedfdse
on projected costs of the three transmission laresthe percentage agreements among participdilitges, Minnesota Power plans to inv
between $100 million and $125 million in the Cap2Q0nitiative through 2015, of which $27.8 millievas spent through December 31, 2
As future CapX2020 projects are identified, MinrtasBower may elect to participate on a project-tnjget basis.

In July 2010, the MPUC granted a route permit fer 28mile, 345 kV line between Monticello and St. Cloddhe project was completed ¢
placed into service in December 2011. On June @01 2the MPUC approved the route permit for the idspta portion of the Fargo to
Cloud project. The North Dakota permitting procisssnderway. The entire 238ile, 345 kV line from Fargo to Monticello is exped to be i
service by 2015.

In November 2010, the MPUC approved a route pefonithe Bemidji to Grand Rapids, Minnesota line axstruction for the 230 kV lii
project commenced in January 2011. The Leech LakelB®f Ojibwe (LLBO) subsequently requested the MPispend or revoke the ra
permit and also served the CapX2020 owners witbnaptaint filed in Leech Lake Tribal Court assertadjudicatory and regulatory autho
over the project. The CapX2020 owners filed a retifm declaratory judgment in the United Statestiiit Court for the District of Minnesc
(District Court) that the project does not requiteBO consent to cross namibal land within the reservation. On June 22, 20the feder:
judge issued a preliminary injunction directing tHeBO to cease and desist its claims of tribal ¢qurisdiction or from taking other actions
interfere with regulatory review, approval or pidjeonstruction. The LLBO abandoned its motion igidss the declaratory action becaust
District Court’s injunction order had already dismissed the basithe motion, namely, that the District Court didt have jurisdiction to he
the CapX2020 ownersiction. The parties are now proceeding with disppaad the CapX2020 owners do not anticipate atipras by th
District Court until after the completion of disa@y closes on May 31, 2012. The MPUC has takenctiorain the matter in light of ongoi
litigation in federal and tribal courts. The CapXBQutilities are vigorously defending against theBO actions.

Investment in ATCAs of December 31, 2011 , our equity investmenAiFrC was $98.9 million , representing an approxim@teercer
ownership interest. ATC rates are based on a FERToaed 12.2 percemeturn on common equity dedicated to utility plant.Septembe
2011, ATC updated its 1@ear transmission assessment covering the yeafistB@dugh 2020 which identifies between $3.8 and $dllion in
transmission system improvements. This investnmepkpected to be funded by ATC through a combinativinternally generated cash, ¢
and investor contributions. As opportunities arige,plan to make additional investments in ATC tigto general capital calls based upon
pro rata ownership interest in ATC. On January 3012, we invested an additional $0.8 million in AT total, we expect to inve
approximately $3 million throughout 2012 . (See &6t Investment in ATC.)

In April 2011, ATC and Duke Energy Corporation aanoed the creation of a joint venture, Dukeerican Transmission Co. (DATC) tl
intends to build, own and operate new electricanaigsion infrastructure in the U.S. and Canada. DA subject to the rules and regulati
of FERC, MISO, PJM Interconnection LLC and variaiiser independent system operators and state tegukuthorities. In September 20
DATC announced its first set of proposed transmisgirojects, which include seven new transmissios projects in five Midwestern stat
The individual projects have a total cost of apprately $4 billion. We intend to maintain our apyiroate 8 percent ownership interes
ATC.
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BNI Coal. In 2011 , BNI Coal sold approximately 4.3 millioons of coal (3.8 million tons in 2010 ) and antatgs 2012ales to be similar
2011 .

ALLETE Properties ALLETE Properties represents our Florida real estavestment. Our current strategy for the assete complete ar
maintain key entittements and infrastructure imgments without requiring significant additional @ment, and sell the portfolio over tim¢
in bulk transactions. ALLETE intends to sell itoftla land assets when opportunities arise andiestrthe proceeds in its growth initiati
ALLETE does not intend to acquire additional Flerictal estate.

Our two major development projects are Town Ceatat Palm Coast Park. Another major project, Orm@nalssings, is currently in t
planning stage. The City of Ormond Beach, Floridaproved a Development Agreement for Ormond Crgssiwhich will facilitate
development of the project as currently plannegaBsely, the Lake Swamp wetland mitigation bank warmitted on land that was previot
part of Ormond Crossings.

Summary of Development Projects Residential Non-residential
Land Available-for-Sale Ownership Acres(a) Units (b) Sq. Ft.(b,c)
Current Development Projects

Town Center 100%  (d) 96& 2,48t 2,246,201

Palm Coast Park 100% 3,88¢ 3,55¢ 3,096,80!
Total Current Development Projects 4,85: 6,03¢ 5,343,00!
Proposed Development Project

Ormond Crossings 100% 2,914 2,95( 3,215,001
Other

Lake Swamp Wetland Mitigation Project 100% 3,04 (e) (e)
Total of Development Projects 10,81: 8,98¢ 8,558,00!

(@) Acreage amounts are approximate and shown on asdrasis, including wetland

(b) Units and square footage are estimated. Densityudtl out may differ from these estimat

(c) Depending on the project, n-residential includes retail commercial, noetail commercial, office, industrial, warehoustgrage and institutiona

(d) In 2011, the remaining shares of the ALLETE Praperhot-controlling interest were purchased for $8.8 mifliby issuing 0.2 million shares of ALLE
common stock.

(e) The Lake Swamp wetland mitigation bank is a peechittegionally significant wetlands mitigation banketland mitigation credits will be used
Ormond Crossings and are available-for-sale to digyers of other projects that are located in theakia service area.

In addition to the three development projects dednbitigation bank, ALLETE Properties has 1,97%aaf other land available-for-sale.

ALLETE intends to sell its Florida land assets wiogportunities arise. However, if weak market ctiods continue for an extended periol
time, the impact on our future operations wouldthe continuation of little or no sales while stillcurring operating expenses and carr
costs such as community development district asss#s and property taxes.

ALLETE Clean EnergyOn August 26, 2011, the Company filed with the MPfd€approval of certain affiliated interest agresms betwee
ALLETE and ALLETE Clean Energy. These agreementateeto various relationships with ALLETE, includirthe accounting for certe
shared services, as well as the transfer of tressam and wind development rights in North DakaiaAl LETE Clean Energy. The
transmission and wind development rights are sépamad distinct from those needed by Minnesota Pdweneet Minnesota’ renewabl
energy standard requirements.

Income Taxes.ALLETE's aggregate federal and mudtate statutory tax rate is approximately 41 peréen2012. On an ongoing ba:
ALLETE has certain tax credits and other tax adpesits that reduce the statutory rate to the effectax rate. These tax credits
adjustments historically have included items sushingestment tax credits, renewable tax creditsyBE-Equity, domestic manufacture
deduction, depletion, as well as other items. Tireual effective rate can also be impacted by stehs as changes in income from opera
before noneontrolling interest and income taxes, state adér@ tax law changes that become effective dutiegyear, business combinati
and configuration changes, tax planning initiatiaesl resolution of prior years' tax matters. Duengrily to increased renewable tax credit
a result of additional wind generation, we expasteffective tax rate to be approximately 30 petéen2012.
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Liquidity and Capital Resources

Liquidity Position. ALLETE is well-positioned to meet the Company’s ltdkow needs. As of December 31, 201ve had cash and c:
equivalents of $101.1 million , $255.3 million inadlable consolidated lines of credit and a debtdpital ratio of 44 percent. On Februar
2012, the Company entered into an additional $1Bbmsyndicated revolving credit facility. Thisew facility is unsecured and has a mati
date of January 31, 2014.

Capital Structure. ALLETE's capital structure for each of the lasta@ryears is as follows:

Year Ended December 31 2011 % 201( % 200¢ %

Millions

Common Equity $1,079.: 56 $976.( 55 $929.t 57

Non-Controlling Interest — — 9.C 1 9.t —

Long-Term Debt (Including Current Maturities) 863.< 44 785.( 44 701.C 43

Short-Term Debt 1.1 — 1.C — 1.6 —
$1,943” 100 $1,771.( 100 $1,641. 10C

Cash Flows.Selected information from ALLETE’s Consolidated t8taent of Cash Flows is as follows:

Year Ended December 31 2011 201cC 200¢
Millions
Cash and Cash Equivalents at Beginning of Period $44.¢ $25.7 $102.(
Cash Flows from (used for)
Operating Activities 2415 228.% 137.¢
Investing Activities (240.9 (250.9 (320.0
Financing Activities 55.¢ 41.4 106.:
Change in Cash and Cash Equivalents 56.2 19.2 (76.9)
Cash and Cash Equivalents at End of Period $101.: $44.¢ $25.7

Operating Activities. Cash from operating activities was $241.7 millian 2011 ( $228.7 million for 2010 ; $137.4 millidor 2009). The
increase in cash from operating activities was grily due to higher 2011 net income primarily fravar Regulated Operations Segm
decreased cash contributions to our pension aret ptistretirement employee benefit plans ($24.7 millior2@11 and $39.3 million in 201!
increased customer deposits, partially offset dg@ease in accounts payable and higher inventdanbes.

Cash from operating activities was higher in 201&nt2009 primarily due to higher net income, higihegreciation expense related to incre
plant in service in 2010, and collections of incotag receivables due to bonus depreciation as @tres the American Recovery a
Reinvestment Act of 2009 and tax planning initiaiv This increase was partially offset by higheshcaontributions to the defined ben
pension and other postretirement benefit plan®i02f $26.5 million and $12.8 million respectivé$20.9 million and $9.3 million in 2009).

Investing Activities. Cash used for investing activities was $240.9 orillfor 2011 ( $250.9 million for 2010 ; $320.0 riaifi for 2009). The
decrease in cash used was primarily due to lowgtat@xpenditures in 2011 and the redemption oSABr $6.7 million in January 2011.

Cash used for investing activities in 2010 was lothean 2009 reflecting decreased capital addittonsoperty, plant and equipment, and lc
investments in ATC.

Financing Activities. Cash from financing activities was $55.4 milliom 2011 ( $41.4 million for 2010 ; $106.3 millionrf@a009). Cash fror
financing activities was higher in 2011 primarilyedto increased proceeds from the issuances of constock, partially offset by lower r
proceeds of long-term debt in 2011.
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Liquidity and Capital Resources (Continued)
Financing Activities (Continued)

Cash from financing activities was lower in 2010ng@ared to 2009 due to higher internally generasesth @and lower capital expenditures wl
resulted in lower common stock issuances and fesemental external financing required. Cash fromarfcing activities in 2010 included n
debt issuances of $155 million compared to $111ildom in 2009, of which $65 million of the procegdvere used to pay off the syndic:
revolving credit facility that was drawn in late(@)

Working Capital . Additional working capital, if and when neede@ngrally is provided by consolidated bank linesidit or the sale
securities or commercial paper. As of December281,1 , we had available consolidated bank linesredit aggregating $255.3 millignthe
majority of which expire in June 2015. On Februar2012, ALLETE entered into an additional $150limil syndicated revolving crei
facility. This new facility is unsecured and hamaturity date of January 31, 2014. In addition,hage 1.4 millionoriginal issue shares of ¢
common stock available for issuance through IniBetct, our direct stock purchase and dividendwestment plan, and 2.7 milliaoriginal
issue shares of common stock available for issutmoeigh a Distribution Agreement with KCCI, Indhd amount and timing of future sale:
our securities will depend upon market conditiond aur specific needs.

Securities. We entered into a distribution agreement with KQ@c., in February 2008, as amended, with respmetite issuance and sale o
to an aggregate of 6.6 million shares of our commsimek, without par value. For the year ended D31, 2011 , 0.4 millioshares ¢
common stock were issued under this agreementefoproceeds of $16.0 million ( 0.2 million shafessnet proceeds of $6.0 millian 2010)
As of December 31, 2011 , 2.7 million sharexofmon stock remain available for issuance purstaatite amended distribution agreem
The shares issued in 2011 and 2010 were offeresbfer from time to time, in accordance with threnteof the amended distribution agreer
pursuant to Registration Statement Nos. 333-170289 333147965. The remaining shares may be offered far, Sedm time to time, i
accordance with the terms of the amended distohuagreement pursuant to Registration Statemen888170289.

In 2011, we issued 0.6 millioshares of common stock through Invest Direct, thgpleyee Stock Purchase Plan, and the Retiremenh@
and Stock Ownership Plan, resulting in net procezfd$24.7 million. These shares of common stock were registeredr URegistratiol
Statement Nos. 333-150681, 333-105225 and 333-15288pectively.

On December 15, 2011, ALLETE contributed approxaha607,600shares of ALLETE common stock to its pension plahese shares
ALLETE common stock were contributed in relianc@ngxemption available pursuant to Section 4(2hefSecurities Act of 1933 and hac
aggregate value of $20.0 million when contributed.

In the third quarter of 2011, the remaining shasethe ALLETE Properties non-controlling intereseng purchased at book value #8.¢
million by issuing 0.2 millionunregistered shares of ALLETE common stock. This aecounted for as an equity transaction, and moa
loss is recognized in net income or comprehensigeme.

Financial Covenants. See Note 10. Short-Term and Long-Term Debt ffarination regarding our financial covenants.

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements Off-balance sheet arrangements are discussedtan .. Commitments, Guarantees and Contingencies.
Contractual Obligations and Commercial Commitments. Minnesota Power has contractual obligations ahdracommitments that will ne

to be funded in the future, in addition to its ¢apexpenditure programs. Following is a summaritzddde of contractual obligations and o
commercial commitments at December 31, 2011 .
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Liquidity and Capital Resources (Continued)
Contractual Obligations (Continued)

Payments Due by Period

Contractual Obligations Less than 1to3 4t05 After
As of December 31, 2011 Total 1 Year Years Years 5 Years
Millions
Long-Term Debt $1,372.: $48.2 $307.¢ $140.¢ $875.¢
Pension 132.¢ 1.C 96.5 35.4 —
Other Postretirement Benefit Plans 55.C 13.¢ 29.t 11.€ —
Operating Lease Obligations 96.¢ 10.€ 33.7 17.7 34.k
Uncertain Tax Position&) — — — — —
Unconditional Purchase Obligatiorn(b) 671.¢ 319.t 126.1 43.€ 182.2
$2,328.! $393.t $593.¢ $249.. $1,092.!
(&) Excludes $11.4 million of n-current unrecognized tax benefits due to uncenyaiergarding the timing of future cash paymentstelato uncertain te
positions.

(b) Excludes agreements with Manitoba Hydro expirin@@22 and 2035 as our obligation under these cartérés conditional on surplus energy and
construction of additional transmission capacity.

Long-Term Debt.Our long-term debt obligations, including loterm debt due within one year, represent the gsaicamount of bonds, no
and loans which are recorded on our consolidatéa@nba sheet, plus interest. The table above asstimag¢gshe interest rates in effec
December 31, 2011 , remain constant through thaireng term. (See Note 10. Short-Term and Long-TBeht.)

Pension and Other Postretirement Benefit Pl:Our pension and other postretirement benefit plaigations represent our current estimai
employer contributions. Pension contributions Wwél dependent on several factors including reakimset performance, future discount rate
other actuarial assumptions, IRS and other regylagmuirements, and contributions required to dvmnefit restrictions for the pension pl:
Funding for the other postretirement benefit plasisimpacted by realized asset performance, futiseodnt rate and other actua
assumptions, and utility regulatory requirementsese amounts are estimates and will change basadtaal market performance, change
interest rates and any changes in governmentalatégns. (See Note 16. Pension and Other Postneting Benefit Plans.)

Unconditional Purchase Obligation&/nconditional purchase obligations represent oua®eg Butte and Manitoba Hydro PPAs, minin
purchase commitments under coal and rail contreams, purchase obligations for certain capital egiare projects. (See Note .
Commitments, Guarantees and Contingencies.)

Under Minnesota Power's PPA with Square Butte ¢lxégnds through 2026, we are obligated to pay cwurgta share of Square Buietost
based on our entitlement to the output of SquartkeBu455 MW coal-fired generating unit near Centdorth Dakota. Minnesota Power’
payment obligation will be suspended if Square 8ddils to deliver any power, whether produced orchased, for a period of one yi
Square Buttes fixed costs consist primarily of debt serviceeTlable above reflects our share of future debticmbased on our outg
entitlement of 50 percent. (See Note 11. Commits)gBtarantees and Contingencies.)

We have a PPA with Manitoba Hydro that expires prif2015. Under this agreement, Minnesota Pow@uixhasing 50 MW of capacity &
the energy associated with that capacity. Bothctiqgacity price and the energy price are adjustedhaly by the change in a governme
inflationary index.

In 2006 and 2007 , Minnesota Power entered intolbmgterm wind PPAs with an affiliate of NextEra Enerdjyc. to purchase the output fr
Oliver Wind | ( 50 MW) and Oliver Wind Il ( 48 MW3 wind facilities located near Center, North Dakdach agreement is for 3®ars an
provides for the purchase of all output from theilftes at fixed prices. There are no fixed capacharges and we only pay for energy as
delivered to us.
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Liquidity and Capital Resources (Continued)

Credit Ratings . Access to reasonably priced capital markets eddent in part on credit and ratings. Our seasritiave been rated
Standard & Poor’s and by Moody's. Rating agencies lboth quantitative and qualitative measures iardening a company’ credit rating
These measures include business risk, liquiditl, rompetitive position, capital mix, financial abtion, predictability of cash flow
management strength and future direction. Soméefquantitative measures can be analyzed throughv &ey financial ratios, while tl
gualitative ones are more subjective. The disclosdfithese credit ratings is not a recommendatdiuty, sell or hold our securities. Ratings
subject to revision or withdrawal at any time b #ssigning rating organization. Each rating shdnglcevaluated independently of any o
rating.

Credit Ratings Standard & Poor’s Moody’s
Issuer Credit Rating BBB+ Baal
Commercial Paper A-2 p-2
Senior Secured

First Mortgage Bond&) A- A2
Unsecured Debt

Collier County Industrial Development Revenue Borddxed Rate BBB -

(&) Includes collateralized pollution control bonc

Common Stock Dividends. ALLETE is committed to providing an attractiveecsire dividend to its shareholders while at the esdimme
funding its growth. The Company’s longrm objective is to maintain a dividend payouiaaimilar to our peers and provide for fut
dividend increases. In 2011 , we paid out 66 par@hpercent in 2010 ; 93 percent in 20Q¥ our per share earnings in dividends. On Ja
26, 2012, our Board of Directors declared a divitlef $0.46 per share, which is payable on MarcB(0lL2, to shareholders of record at
close of business on February 15, 2012.

Capital Requirements
ALLETE's projected capital expenditures for the gge@012 through 2016ére presented in the table below. Actual capitpleaxditures me

vary from the estimates due to changes in foredgsent maintenance, regulatory decisions or apggspfuture environmental requireme
base load growth, capital market conditions or atiens of new business strategies.

Capital Expenditures 2012 2013 201< 201t 201¢ Total
Millions
Regulated Utility Operations
Base and Other $112 $14¢ $14: $122 $11¢€ $641
Current Cost Recoverya)
Environmenta(b) 11 94 152 68 — 32t
Renewable 274 3 7 — — 284
Transmissiorfc) 31 36 26 8 12 113
Total Current Cost Recovery 31¢ 13¢ 18E 76 12 722
Regulated Utility Capital Expenditures 42¢ 281 32¢ 19¢ 12¢ 1,36:
Other 13 20 8 8 4 53
Total Capital Expenditures $441 $301 $33¢ $20¢ $13: $1,41¢

(a) Estimated current capital expenditures recoverahleside of a rate cas

(b) Environmental capital expenditures relate to Bo$wiilit 4 in order to address compliance with the MArule. Compliance costs for this project
estimated between $300 million and $400 milliorhulie lower end of this range reflected in the ¢addbove.

(c) Transmission capital expenditures related to Ca2®8re estimated at approximately $90 million otver 2012 to 2016 perio

We intend to finance expenditures from both intbyngenerated funds and incremental debt and eglased on our anticipated car
expenditures reflected above, we project our rasebto grow by approximately 40 percent through62@ther proposed environmer
regulations could result in future capital expemdis that are not included in the table above. By, future CapX2020 projects are ur
discussion and Minnesota Power may elect to ppéieion a project by project basis.
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Environmental and Other Matters

Our businesses are subject to regulation of enwieorial matters by various federal, state and laecahorities. Due to future restrict
environmental requirements through legislation andidlemaking, we anticipate that potential expamdis for environmental matters will
material and will require significant capital inte®nts. We are unable to predict the outcome ofsthiges discussed in Note 11. Commitmu
Guarantees and Contingencies. (See Item 1. BusinEasironmental Matters.)

Market Risk
Securities Investments

Available-for-Sale Securitiesht December 31, 2011 , our available-Bale securities portfolio consisted of securitigtslelished to fund certe
employee benefits. (See Note 7. Investments.)

Interest Rate Risk. We are exposed to risks resulting from changeastérest rates as a result of our issuance oabbrirate debt. We man:
our interest rate risk by varying the issuance muadlurity dates of our fixed rate debt, limiting thount of variable rate debt, and contint
monitoring the effects of market changes in interates. We may also enter into derivative finahicistruments, such as interest rate sway
mitigate interest rate exposure. The table belogsgnmts the lonterm debt obligations and the corresponding weidlateerage interest rate
December 31, 2011 .

Expected Maturity Date
Interest Rate Sensitive Fair
Financial Instruments 2012 201z 201< 201t 201€  Thereafter Total Value
Dollars in Millions
Long-Term Debt

Fixed Rate $2.C $71.t $19.2 $1.C $21.( $600.¢ $715.¢ $818.1
Average Interest Rate — % 5.€ 5.2 6.8 4.8 7.6 5.7 5.8
Variable Rate $3.4 $12.% $75.( $15.% — $41.c $147. $147.7
Average Interest Rate — (&) 3.1 3.6 1.3 0.2 — 0.1 1.1

(@) Assumes rates in effect December 31, 201demain constant through remaining term. The $78ionilterm loan maturing in 2014 has an effectivet
rate of 1.825% due to an interest rate swap.

Interest rates on variable rate lomym debt are reset on a periodic basis refleginegailing market conditions. Based on the variabte det
outstanding at December 31, 2014nd assuming no other changes to our finandiattstre, an increase of 100 basis points in intewEs:
would impact the amount of pretax interest expdns&1.5 million. This amount was determined by ddeisng the impact of a hypotheti
100 basis point increase to the average variabdeest rate on the variable rate debt outstandiraf ®ecember 31, 2011 .

Commodity Price Risk. Our regulated utility operations incur costs fjower and fuel (primarily coal and related transaton) in Minnesot
and power and natural gas purchased for resalerimegulated service territory in Wisconsin. Ourmiiésota regulated utility’ exposure 1
price risk for these commodities is significantjtigated by the current ratemaking process andlaggry framework, which allows recove
of fuel costs in excess of those included in basesr Conversely, costs below those in base rasedt iin a credit to our ratepayers. We se:
prudently manage our customeexXposure to price risk by entering into contradtgasious durations and terms for the purchaseowigy an
coal and related transportation costs (MinnesotagdPoand natural gas (SWL&P).

Power Marketing . Our power marketing activities consist of: (1xghasing energy in the wholesale market to serveregulated servic
territory when retail energy requirements exceetegation output; and (2) selling excess availablergy and purchased power. From tim
time, our utility operations may have excess enghgy is temporarily not required by retail and ricipal customers in our regulated senr
territory. We actively sell any excess energy @holesale market to optimize the value of ouregating facilities.

We are exposed to credit risk primarily through power marketing activities. We use credit policiesananage credit risk, which incluc
utilizing an established credit approval process monitoring counterparty limits.
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Recently Adopted Accounting Standards.

New accounting standards are discussed in Not@érafions and Significant Accounting Policies o thorm 1(-K.

ltem 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures about Marlet Risk

See Item 7. Management'’s Discussion and Analysisirdncial Condition and Results of Operationglarket Risk for information related
guantitative and qualitative disclosure about miaris.

Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Dal

See our consolidated financial statements as oémber 31, 2011 and 2010 , and for each of the tywaes in the period end&kcember 3:
2011 , and supplementary data, which are indexétgim 15(a).

ltem 9. Changes in and Disagreements with Accountants on Acunting and Financial Disclosur:

Not applicable

Item 9A. Controls and Procedure:
Conclusion Regarding the Effectiveness of DisclosairControls and Procedures

Under the supervision and with the participatiomm@nagement, including our principal executivecaaffiand principal financial officer, as
December 31, 2011, we conducted an evaluation efefifiectiveness of the design and operation of ALEE disclosure controls a
procedures (as defined in Rules 13a-15(e) or IHd) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 (ErgeeAct)). Based upon those evaluati
our principal executive officer and principal fir@al officer have concluded that, as of December Z111, such disclosure controls

procedures are effective to provide assurance itfiatmation required to be disclosed in ALLE®Efeports filed or submitted under

Exchange Act is recorded, processed, summarizedl regmorted within the time periods specified in BEC’s rules and forms and st
information is accumulated and communicated toronanagement, including our principal executive effiand principal financial officer,
allow timely decisions regarding required discl@sur

Management's Report on Internal Control Over Finandal Reporting

Our management is responsible for establishingraaihtaining adequate internal control over finaho#gorting, as such term is definec
Exchange Act Rule 13a-15(f) or 18&{f). Under the supervision and with the partitipa of our management, including our princ
executive officer and principal financial officeve conducted an evaluation of the effectivenessuofinternal control over financial report
based on the framework in Internal Controlntegrated Framework issued by the Committee ofnSpong Organizations of the Tready
Commission. Based on our evaluation under the fvaorie in Internal Control 4ntegrated Framework, our management concludedain
internal control over financial reporting was effee as of December 31, 2011 .

The effectiveness of the Company’s internal contosler financial reporting as of December 31, 20llhas been audited
PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP, an independent regisfaiblic accounting firm, as stated in their répdrich is included herein.

Changes in Internal Controls

There has been no change in our internal contret éwnancial reporting that occurred during our moecent quarter that has materi
affected, or is reasonably likely to materiallyeaff, our internal control over financial reporting.January 2012, the Company completed
installed new information systems designed to echartain supplghain, financial and asset management applicatibmsse changes we
not the result of any identified deficiencies irr mternal control over financial reporting.

Item 9B. Other

Not applicable
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Part Il
ltem 10. Directors, Executive Officers and Corporate Governace

Unless otherwise stated, the information requigedHis Item is incorporated by reference hereamfrour Proxy Statement for the 20A8nua
Meeting of Shareholders ( 2012 Proxy Statementputite following headings:

« Directors. The information regarding directors will be inclali@ the “Election of Directorssection

« Audit Committee Financial Expert. The information regarding the Audit Committee fin&h expert will be included in the “Audit
Committee Report” section;

¢ Audit Committee Members. The identity of the Audit Committee members willibeluded in the “Audit Committee Repoéction
« Executive Officers.The information regarding executive officers islirtted in Part | of this Form 1K: anc

« Section 16(a) ComplianceThe information regarding Section 16(a) compliawiebe included in the “Ownership of ALLETE
Common Stock — Section 16(a) Beneficial Ownershépdtting Compliance” section.

Our 2012 Proxy Statement will be filed with the S&ithin 120 days after the end of our 2011 fiscaduy
Code of Ethics.We have adopted a written Code of Ethics that eppid all of our employees, including our chief akéve officer, chie
financial officer and controller. A copy of our Gaaf Ethics is available on our website at wwwtalleom and print copies are availe
without charge upon request to ALLETE, Inc., Atient Secretary, 30 West Superior St., Duluth, Msota 55802. Any amendment to
Code of Ethics or any waiver of the Code of Ethigk be disclosed on our website at www.allete.cpromptly following the date of su
amendment or waiver.
Corporate Governance.The following documents are available on our webattwww.allete.com and print copies are availaiplen request:
« Corporate Governance Guidelir
e Audit Committee Charte
e Executive Compensation Committee Charter;

« Corporate Governance and Nominating Committee €h

Any amendment to these documents will be disclasedur website at www.allete.com promptly followithge date of such amendment.

Item 11. Executive Compensatio

The information required for this Item is incorp@@ by reference herein from the “Compensation W@Wison and Analysis,the
“Compensation of Directors and Executive Officethg “Executive Compensation Committee Report” dred“Director Compensation 2011 ”
sections in our 2012 Proxy Statement.

ltem 12. Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners andManagement and Related Stockholder Mattet
The information required for this Item is incorp@@ by reference herein from the “Ownership of ADIEECommon Stock Securities Owne

by Certain Beneficial Owners,” the “Ownership of IMETE Common Stock — Securities Owned by Directard dManagementand th
“Equity Compensation Plan Information” sectionur 2012 Proxy Statement.
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ltem 13. Certain Relationships and Related Transactions, an®irector Independence

The information required for this Item is incorpm@ by reference herein from the “Corporate Gowvecea section in our 2012Proxy
Statement.

We have adopted a Related Person Transaction Relimh is available on our website at www.alletencdPrint copies are available with
charge, upon request. Any amendment to this palitlybe disclosed on our website at www.allete.cpromptly following the date of su
amendment.

ltem 14. Principal Accounting Fees and Service

The information required for this Item is incorp@@ by reference herein from the “Audit CommitteepBrt” section in our 201Proxy
Statement.
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Part IV

Item 15. Exhibits and Financial Statement $edules
@) Certain Documents Filed as Part of this Form 10-K.
D) Financial Statements

ALLETE

Report of Independent Registered Public Accourtfinm
Consolidated Balance Sheet at December 31, 201 2Gii@l
For the Three Years Ended December 31, 2011
Consolidated Statement of Income
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
Consolidated Statement of Shareholtd&guity
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
2) Financial Statement Schedules
Schedule I-ALLETE Valuation and Qualifying Accounts and Resesv

All other schedules have been omitted either bexthesinformation is not required to be reported®hyETE or because the
information is included in the consolidated final&tatements or the notes.

3) Exhibits including those incorporated by refese.
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Exhibit Number

*3(a)l — Atrticles of Incorporation amended and restatedfdday 8, 2001 (filed as Exhibit 3(b) to the March, 2001,
Form 10-Q, File No. 1-3548).
*3(a)2 — Amendment to Articles of Incorporatiasiated as of May 12, 2009 (filed as Exhibit 3 to fume 30, 2009, Form 10-Q, File No. 1-
3548).
*3(a)3 — é\gzl%r)ldment to Articles of Incorporation, dated asvidy 19, 2010 (filed as Exhibit 3(a) to the May 2010, Form 8-K, File No. 1-
*3(a)4 — Amendment to Certificate of Assumed Nafiled with the Minnesota Secretary of State oryNa2001 (filed as
Exhibit 3(a) to the March 31, 2001, Form 10-Q, Mie. 1-3548).
*3(b) —  Bylaws, as amended effective May 11, 2010 (file@&=isibit 3(b) to the May 14, 2010, Form 8-K, Fil®NL-3548).
*4(a)l — Mortgage and Deed of Trust, dated as of Septemb£845, between Minnesota Power & Light Company(#d.LETE) and The

Bank of New York Mellon (formerly Irving Trust Corapy) and Ming Ryan (successor to Richard H. Wést)stees (filed as Exhik
7(c), File No. 2-5865).

*4(2)2 —

Supplemental Indentures to ALLETE’s Mortgage aneédef Trust:

Number Dated as of Reference File Exhibit
First March 1, 1949 2-7826 7(b)
Second July 1, 1951 2-9036 7(c)
Third March 1, 1957 2-13075 2(c)
Fourth January 1, 1968 2-27794 2(c)
Fifth April 1, 1971 2-39537 2(c)
Sixth August 1, 1975 2-54116 2(c)
Seventh September 1, 1976 2-57014 2(c)
Eighth September 1, 1977 2-59690 2(c)
Ninth April 1, 1978 2-60866 2(c)
Tenth August 1, 1978 2-62852 2(d)2
Eleventh December 1, 1982 2-56649 4(a)3
Twelfth April 1, 1987 33-30224 4(a)3
Thirteenth March 1, 1992 33-47438 4(b)
Fourteenth June 1, 1992 33-55240 4(b)
Fifteenth July 1, 1992 33-55240 4(c)
Sixteenth July 1, 1992 33-55240 4(d)
Seventeenth February 1, 1993 33-50143 4(b)
Eighteenth July 1, 1993 33-50143 4(c)
Nineteenth February 1, 1997 1-3548 (1996 Form 10-K) 4(a)3
Twentieth November 1, 1997 1-3548 (199hi-00-K) 4(a)3
Twenty-first October 1, 2000 333-54330 4(c)3
Twenty-second July 1, 2003 1-3548 (June2803 Form 10-Q) 4
Twenty-third August 1, 2004 1-3548 (Sept. 30, 2004 Form 10-Q) 4(a)
Twenty-fourth March 1, 2005 1-3548 (March 3005 Form 10-Q) 4
Twenty-fifth December 1, 2005 1-3548 (March 31, 2006 Form 10-Q) 4
Twenty-sixth October 1, 2006 1-3548 (2008 10-K) 4
Twenty-seventh February 1, 2008 1-3548 (2007 Form 10-K) 4(a)3
Twenty-eighth May 1, 2008 1-3548 (JuneZM8 Form 10-Q) 4
Twenty-ninth November 1, 2008 1-3548 (2008 Form 10-K) 4(a)3
Thirtieth January 1, 2009 1-3548 (2008 FAOBFK) 4(a)4
Thirty-first February 1, 2010 1-3548 (March 31, 2010 Form 10-Q) 4
Thirty-second August 1, 2010 1-3548 (Sept. 30, 2010 Form 10-Q) 4
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Exhibit Number

*4(b)1 — Indenture of Trust, dated as of August 1, 2004wbenh the City of Cohasset, Minnesota and U.S. Béational Association, ¢
Trustee relating to $111 Million Collateralized Rtibn Control Refunding Revenue Bonds (filed aibit 4(b) to the Septemb
30, 2004, Form 10-Q, File No. 1-3548).

*4(b)2 — Loan Agreement, dated as of August 1, 2004, betwkenCity of Cohasset, Minnesota and ALLETE relatio $111 Million
Collateralized Pollution Control Refunding ReverBands (filed as Exhibit 4(c) to the
September 30, 2004, Form 10-Q, File No. 1-3548).

*4(c)1 — Mortgage and Deed of Trust, dated as of March 4318etween Superior Water, Light and Power ComgarChemical Bank
Trust Company and Howard B. Smith, as Trustee$) botceeded by U.S. Bank National Association,rastée (filed as Exhibit 7
(c), File No. 2-8668).

*4(c)2 —  Supplemental Indentures to Superior Wdtght and Power Company’s Mortgage and DeedroST
Number Dated as of Reference File Exhibit
First March 1, 1951 2-59690 2(d)(2)
Second March 1, 1962 2-27794 2(d)1
Third July 1, 1976 2-57478 2(e)l
Fourth March 1, 1985 2-78641 4(b)
Fifth December 1, 1992 1-3548 (1992 ForrK)0 4(b)1
Sixth March 24, 1994 1-3548 (1996 Form 10-K) 4(b)1
Seventh November 1, 1994 1-3548 (1996 FFK) 4(b)2
Eighth January 1, 1997 1-3548 (1996 Form 10-K) 4(b)3
Ninth October 1, 2007 1-3548 (2007 FormK)0- 4(c)3
Tenth October 1, 2007 1-3548 (2007 Form 10-K) 4(c)4
Eleventh December 1, 2008 1-3548 (2008 FLAK) 4(c)3
*4(d) — Term Loan Agreement, dated as of August 25, 20&tywden ALLETE, Inc. and JPMorgan Chase Bank, Na&.Administrative
Agent (filed as Exhibit 4 to the August 31, 201driiA 8-K, File No. 1-3548).
*10(a) — Po